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OFFICE LOCATIONS

INDIANA

Marion
1-800-327-9887

Celina
1-800-953-8330

Versailles
1-800-206-3001

London
1-800-880-6598

Dresden
1-800-346-2191

Anderson
1-800-878-0195

Martinsville
1-800-372-3276

Circleville
1-888-515-5626

Washington CH
1-800-334-9325

Maysville
1-800-880-5931

Fayetteville
1-855-631-9921

Bluffton
1-800-477-4737

Rensselaer
1-888-290-0936

Coshocton
1-855-861-4412

Wooster
1-800-216-9651

Mt. Sterling
1-800-261-3071

Greeneville
1-800-218-1040

Columbia City
1-888-823-2719

Rochester
1-800-508-9873

Delphos
1-800-522-7728

KENTUCKY

Owensboro
1-800-844-1148

Johnson City
1-800-444-3276

Columbus
1-800-231-2747

Rushville
1-800-797-0002

Eaton
1-800-686-4146

Bardstown
1-800-880-7288

Richmond
1-800-880-2741

Knoxville
1-800-524-0931

Corydon
1-800-835-2501

Scottsburg
1-800-742-9930

Gallipolis
1-855-431-2803

Bowling Green
1-800-264-0310

Russellville
1-855-507-6415

Lawrenceburg
1-800-273-0260

Crawfordsville
1-800-875-5531

South Bend
1-888-208-5603

Lucasville
1-800-325-3086

Campbellsville
1-800-880-2396

Shelbyville
1-800-880-1420

Lebanon
1-800-765-7172

Evansville
1-800-345-2835

Sullivan
1-800-952-6171

Mansfield
1-888-200-1380

Danville
1-800-880-1114

Somerset
1-800-880-4311

McMinnville
1-800-444-3276

Franklin
1-800-327-5099

Valparaiso
1-888-212-5308

Marietta
1-888-713-4293

Dry Ridge
1-800-880-6785

TENNESSEE

Murfreesboro
1-800-444-3276

Greencastle
1-800-446-0306

Washington
1-800-288-9348

Millersburg
1-855-838-9959

Elizabethtown
1-800-880-7288

Athens
1-800-444-3276

Oneida
1-800-226-7017

Greensburg
1-877-850-6488

Williamsport
1-888-898-3276

Mt. Orab
1-800-321-3013

Glasgow
1-800-880-9425

Chattanooga
1-877-633-2399

Ripley
1-800-635-5003

Hagerstown
1-800-647-0299

OHIO

New Philadelphia
1-800-327-2551

Grayson
1-800-880-6453

Columbia
1-800-665-9242

Shelbyville
1-855-631-9922

Huntingburg
1-800-752-7429

Alliance
1-800-327-2551

Oberlin
1-800-454-2072

Hardinsburg
1-877-212-8616

Cookeville
1-800-346-2190

Somerville
1-800-469-2794

Kokomo
1-888-956-5666

Archbold
1-800-232-1660

Orwell
1-800-638-9390

Henderson
1-800-783-9776

Crossville
1-800-444-3276

Springfield
1-800-894-9998

Lafayette
1-888-232-9000

Bellefontaine
1-800-589-6118

Springfield
1-800-633-4135

Hopkinsville
1-800-489-5626

Dandridge
1-800-524-0932

Tazewell
1-866-630-5017

LaGrange
1-888-823-2718

Cambridge
1-888-713-4293

Utica
1-800-937-6050

Lexington
1-800-880-2741

Dickson
1-800-227-7414

Three Way
1-888-855-0631
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WE TAKE A 360°
VIEW OF RURAL
AMERICA

92

sales offices
in Indiana, Ohio, Kentucky
and Tennessee

$

97,146

$19.7

customers

billion financial
services cooperative

62.6 million

in diversified business
loans in 2012

At Farm Credit Mid-America, we
know our customers are looking
for more than transactional
banking. They want financing
that adapts to their individual
goals and their way of farming.
And that’s what we do. We deal
with the everyday realities our
customers face. We understand
how their operations work

8,998

288.6 million

$

new customers
in 2012

in earnings (a record year)

and the complexities of their
finances. We know what kind
of financing is needed, what it’s
needed for and when it makes
sense to pay it back. That’s why
we tailor our products to rural
needs and provide financial
services that make sense

RESPONSIBLE PRINTING

for every part of rural living.

Printed with Soy Ink using 10% post-consumer waste recycled paper.
This helped us in saving:

Because we know growth isn’t a
short-term goal. It’s a way of life.

96 years of farm and

rural American financing

158,493 loans

107 mature trees
48,856 gallons of water
43.5 million BTU’s of energy
The cover and interior pages are produced from Forest Stewardship
Council -certified manufacturers, using processes that meet responsible
environmental certifications. FSC is not responsible for any calculations
on saving resources by choosing the paper.
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19.7 billion

$

97,146

owned and
managed assets

8,998

customers

new customers
in 2012

92

sales offices
in Indiana, Ohio,
Kentucky and
Tennessee

7.5% increase

158,493 loans

in owned and
managed assets

1.6 million

$

allocated toward
community giving

LETTER TO CUSTOMERS

At Farm Credit Mid-America, we’re taking a 360-degree, long-term
view of financial services, looking at issues holistically to make
our organization better for our customers. We work with you to
understand all aspects of your operation — not just focusing on
today’s details, but on how you see your business evolving to meet
tomorrow’s demands. Our goal is to provide prudent, reliable credit
during the best, and the most challenging, economic conditions.
SERVING ALL OF AGRICULTURE

Even in a year of severe drought, volatile commodity
prices and global economic uncertainties, agriculture
performed well and Farm Credit benefited from that
success. Our cooperative recorded excellent results
in 2012, setting an earnings record that reached
$288.6 million, a 3.6 percent increase over 2011.
Owned and managed assets were $19.7 billion,
a 7.5 percent increase over 2011.
We are in the second year of our continuous
improvement initiative and have made significant
progress toward realizing the five key objectives
detailed in last year’s Annual Report. They represent
the best of our cooperative’s structure and operating
principles, which are vital to giving you our best.

Provide an exceptional customer experience

We continue to add value to your Farm Credit
experience by improving the quality and efficiency
of each interaction. In 2012, we significantly
improved and streamlined our loan application
process, reducing the decision time by almost half.
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Plus, we continue to reduce the administrative burden
of our field teams so they can focus on the unique
needs of our customers and spend less time
on paperwork.

Grow constructively

Leveraging favorable agriculture market conditions,
emerging trends and a deeper understanding of
individual customer needs helps us anchor solid,
smart financial growth. This year, we delivered more
value by pursuing a partnership with Farm Credit
Leasing. Our aggressive focus on crop insurance
resulted in an 11.9 percent acreage increase over 2011.

Improve credit quality and administration

We have taken steps to better understand your
operational needs, which include spending more time
with you to discover your goals. This allows us to
shape financial plans using the best risk management
tools to help you manage during challenging
economic conditions.

Maintain sustainable financial operations

Our competitive interest rates help improve our
financial performance and make us the best partner
for you now and in the future.

BILL JOHNSON
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

A 360-DEGREE VIEW

Enhance the coaching culture

Staffing efforts are focused on preparing for
upcoming retirements and training new and
existing employees to grow and improve.
In the year ahead, Farm Credit Mid-America will
continue to serve agriculture in several ways.
 Work with other Farm Credit System cooperatives,
community banks and organizations serving rural
America to support financial stability for farmers,
rural residents and businesses.
 Ensure our product offerings meet customer needs
— from rural lifestylers and traditional farmers
to the largest producers who connect directly to
global markets.
 Support local agricultural organizations and
universities as a good corporate citizen that
gives back to our communities.
It is important to be a cooperative that understands
your present and future needs to ensure safe,
dependable credit is available when you need it.
That means taking a 360-degree, long-term view
of financial services and of our relationship with
customers. We’ll be here and ready to grow right
along with you.

Bill Johnson
President and Chief Executive Officer

19.7
billion

$

in owned and managed assets

288.6

$

million in earnings

7.5

%

increase in owned and
managed assets
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LETTER TO CUSTOMERS

During a recent Farm Credit Mid-America regional customer meeting,
we broke into small groups for roundtable discussions. I asked my group,
“What do you want from Farm Credit?” One gentleman said something
that stayed with me: “I want them to know what makes me tick.”
For him, it wasn’t just about rates or products. He wanted a 360-degree
relationship with Farm Credit so that when he said, “I need money
for this,” his lending team already knew his plans, his goals and what
motivated him. In other words, what made him tick.
360-DEGREE RELATIONSHIPS

In 2012, Farm Credit continued to build on successful
programs and initiatives to help our cooperative and
you, our customers, face the future with confidence.

Loan conversions

This popular program allows eligible customers to
access lower interest rates for current loans. In 2012,
a record 32,477 conversions were completed totaling
$5.5 billion, for customer savings of more than 0.75
percent, or $127.9 million, over three years.

Competitive interest rates

Because Farm Credit is a cooperative, the capital
invested by customers allows us to provide
competitive financing, passing the value of
ownership directly to you through attractive
interest rates.
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Knowledge building

Maintaining the status quo will not help us grow,
so we have invested in training for Farm Credit
employees and board members. Every employee and
director is encouraged to be productive and engaged,
and training facilitates this growth.

Collaborative atmosphere

Building unity among our team of senior leaders, staff
members and board members will help us do our best
for you as we address common goals.

Customer advisory committees

As the business of agriculture evolves, grassroots
connections with customers and industry experts are
vital to our collective success. Farm Credit advisory
committees provide valuable feedback to our board,
giving us firsthand information about the products
and services that will benefit our members most.

KEVIN COX
CHAIR, BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Signature programs

Our partnerships with educational institutions,
including the University of Tennessee and Purdue
University, help us build relationships with the
brightest agriculture students — either as future
Farm Credit employees or customers. Our work will
expand in 2013 through partnerships with CoBank
and AgCredit to support the forthcoming Center for
Cooperative Business and Community Education
and Development at The Ohio State University.

Community giving

Farm Credit provides hands-on assistance to meet
community needs from food shelf donations and
disaster relief to capital investments in 4-H camps
and FFA facilities. Just one of many examples
occurred when a tornado devastated areas of
southern Indiana, Kentucky and Tennessee in March
2012. Several teams of Farm Credit staffers assisted
in cleanup efforts, and a cash donation was made to
the American Red Cross.
This is an exciting time to be part of Farm Credit.
We serve nearly 100,000 customers and employ more
than 1,000 people who work in nearly 100 offices in
our four-state area. Our business is thriving as we
work to keep our cooperative competitive, proactive
and smart. This enables us to build 360-degree
relationships with our customers — to know what
makes them tick.

Kevin Cox
Chair, Board of Directors

SHOWCASING AGRICULTURE

Institutional investors choose from among
thousands of investment opportunities. One
of them is Farm Credit System securities —
sales of which generate the funds the Farm
Credit System uses to finance farmers and
ranchers across the country. This funding
enables qualified borrowers to procure loans,
leases and financial services from their local
Farm Credit office, allowing them to provide
America with high-quality agricultural
products and services.
To ensure Farm Credit securities remain
appealing to the investment community,
periodic agricultural tours educate investors
about American agriculture and the role
their investments play in supporting food,
fuel and fiber production.
In September 2012, Farm Credit MidAmerica cohosted more than two dozen bond
traders on a two-day tour of six agricultural
operations, including several located within
the Farm Credit Mid-America territory.
Destinations showcased the strength,
diversity and innovation of agriculture and
included a sod farm, greenhouse nursery,
dairy operation, fruit processor and two
grain operations.
Agriculture tours are a compelling way to
show investors how they make a positive
difference in our efforts to feed the world.
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16,651

online banking accounts

14,945

rural home customers
in Farm Credit’s portfolio

5,353

Farm Cash
Management
accounts

46%

of Farm Credit
portfolio involved
in grains

$

6.6 billion

in loans to customers
farming less than 10 years

33,607

Farm Credit loans
to customers under
the age of 35

196 million

$

in equipment financed
through dealerships

IT’S MORE THAN A LOAN. IT’S A LEGACY.
Farms are usually multigenerational enterprises where the learned pass along
wisdom gained from years of experience to the young. In addition to conferring
this treasured knowledge, there must be a plan in place to ensure the next
generation can know the joy of farm life. Farm Credit Mid-America helps
families prepare for the future.
Bill Ramsey with Financial Services Officer Jon Brookbank

IT’S MORE THAN A LOAN. IT’S A LEGACY.

Two farms, two longtime Farm Credit customers, one shared goal:
leave a legacy for future generations. Bill Ramsey of Paradise Valley
Farms in Louisville, Ohio, is a third-generation Farm Credit customer.
Jim Schriver, who runs the 1,600 acre S&S Family Farms in Wells County,
Indiana, has 43 years in farming. Both count on Farm Credit to ensure
their farms are successful today and well prepared for tomorrow.
PARADISE VALLEY FARMS

and we got the sale arranged fast. It’s unbelievable to
be able to work with a lender that closely.”

Ramsey’s family business includes a 400-cow dairy
and 1,500 crop acres. He also sells bulls to farmers
nearby and in Florida, Georgia and Pennsylvania.
Ramsey purchased the farm from his parents, and is
a third-generation Farm Credit customer.

Ramsey regards Farm Credit as a partner that strives
to provide flexibility and convenience. “For example,
with my Farm Credit equipment loan, I can purchase
a piece of equipment and get Farm Credit financing
right at the dealership,” he says.

Today, Ramsey’s two sons work full time with him
on the farm: Mike runs the crop operation and Brian
partners with Ramsey’s son-in-law to manage the
cattle operation. Other family members assist with
everything from milking to accounting duties.
Ramsey and his family are also working through
succession planning details with their Farm Credit
representative.

“Farm Credit is an important part of our operation.
“There aren’t many other organizations helping
farmers with loans the way Farm Credit is. I consider
Farm Credit part of our team.”

“Farm Credit makes it possible for us to operate the
way we do,” says Ramsey. “We have been growing our
land base and have real estate loans, an operating
loan and an equipment loan with Farm Credit.”
In this part of the country, land that comes up for sale
gets purchased very quickly. I called Farm Credit,

8 2012 Annual Report

FAR M CR E DIT LOAN P OR T FOLIO
(as of December 31, 2012)

68.0%
17.0%
6.0%
6.0%
3.0%

Real Estate
Operating and Equipment
Agribusiness
Rural Residential Home Loans
Leases and Other

68.0% Real Estate
17.0% Operating and Equipment

5,682
CUSTOMERS WHO HAVE A DAIRY OPERATION

Leaving a legacy for the next generation is a
cherished tradition. In agriculture, that’s more than
giving a financial gift — it’s sharing a life’s work.
Jim Schriver runs the 1,600-acre S&S Family Farms in
Wells County, Indiana with two grandsons. Corn and
beans are their primary crops with additional wheat
acres to support a manure management program for the
8,000-head hog operation run by the two younger men.
“My wife and I moved to town so our grandsons could
be where the action is,” says Schriver, who carries
crop insurance and operating, equipment and real
estate loans with Farm Credit. “They get to learn
management responsibilities, and there’s no better
way to do that than to experience it.”
After 43 years in farming, Schriver believes a written
strategic plan is essential to running a successful
operation. “Farm Credit helps us orchestrate our
Above: Steph Kieser milking cows at Paradise Farms
Right: Jim Schriver with grandsons Logan (left) and Jacob Slusher

long-range plan,” he explains. “As farmers, sometimes
we have a plan in our heads, but we don’t write it down
and reexamine it. That’s what I’ve tried to do, and
that’s what I’ve tried to get across to my grandsons.”
Schriver continues to work with Farm Credit on his
succession plan. “It’s important to work with people
who understand agriculture and who want to partner
with you long term. You want to feel confident that
they’ll be with you through it all.”

DTN/The Progressive Farmer, Pamela Smith, 2012

S&S FAMILY FARMS
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7,864 farmers markets

in the United States, a
9.6% increase over 2011

$

8 billion

local and organic
food sales in the U.S.

OUR CUSTOMERS GROW HERE. BUT THEY CAN SELL ANYWHERE.
One of our greatest strengths at Farm Credit Mid-America is our versatility:
We have the ability to serve a wide range of customers. From an operation
that supplies produce to regional retailers to a company that exports identitypreserved soybeans to international markets, Farm Credit provides the right
financing and expertise to help each enterprise realize its individual potential.
Left to right: Mike Brown and David Martin

418 acres

average size of a
United States farm

12,549

farms marketing products
through Community
Supported Agriculture
(CSA) arrangements

17.5 billion

$

value of soybeans
exported annually

OUR CUSTOMERS GROW HERE. BUT THEY CAN SELL ANYWHERE.

Mike Brown and David Martin have very different operations.
One sells produce to retail customers from the farm and wholesale
produce to local stores. The other ships more than a million bushels
of food-grade soybeans to Asia each year. Both are Farm Credit
Mid-America customers — and a testament to the association’s
ability to serve the diverse needs of a variety of enterprises.
MIKE BROWN'S FARM FRESH PRODUCE
U. S. FAR M R E L AT E D INCOM E SOU RCES

Mike Brown farms 800 acres in Charleston,
Tennessee, with tobacco, soybeans, 300 Holstein
steers and 150 acres producing sweet corn,
strawberries, watermelon, cantaloupe, squash,
zucchini, tomatoes and sweet potatoes.
Brown and his three-person staff sell produce from
a retail store on the farm and local farmers markets,
while his wholesale business supplies Wal-Mart and
other area stores with fresh fruits and vegetables.
“We guarantee everything we deliver to stores,” says
Brown. “We don’t let them take a loss. That promise
has gone a long way in helping our business.”
Brown has a farm mortgage and operating line of
credit through Farm Credit. “Farm Credit has allowed
me to develop my operation,” says Brown. “I’ve grown
from a half-acre of tobacco 25 years ago to what I have
now. Farm Credit always believed in me.”

Farm Credit employees Shane Williams (far left) and Gabe Curtis
(far right) with Michaelee Brown (Mike’s daughter) and Mike Brown
12 2012 Annual Report

Activities such as agri-tourism, recreational services and
custom harvesting provided the highest average income.
P ERCEN TAG E O F
FA R M R EL AT ED I N CO M E

58.2%
23.6%
18.2%

SIZ E O F O P ER ATIO N
(TOTA L FA R M SA L E S)

$
$

250,000 OR LESS

250,000– $ 999,999
$

1 MILLION+

1.5
million
BUSHELS OF HIGH-PROTEIN

SOY B E A N S E X P O R T E D
A N N UA L LY

BLUEGRASS FARMS
It’s a long way from Fayette County, Ohio, to South
Asia. But David Martin, president and founder of
Bluegrass Farms in Jeffersonville, Ohio, bridges that
logistical and cultural distance every day, supplying
overseas customers with soybeans grown to meet
their specific needs. “We have customers in Japan,
Korea and other Asian markets,” says Martin, who
employs a local staff of 20. “We export 95 percent of
our soybeans, including varieties used to make soy
milk, tofu and miso.”

“I like Farm Credit because it’s local, with local
representatives,” he says. “If we have any questions,
we know who to talk to and have confidence that our
questions will be answered right away.” Martin also
turns to CoBank, a Farm Credit affiliate, to manage
his day-to-day business financial needs.
“There is a lot of variability in agriculture,” says Martin.
“Sometimes banks that deal with agriculture don’t
stay in it very long, because they don’t understand
the unpredictable nature of this business. Farm
Credit and CoBank understand how important it is
to provide a reliable source of credit.”

Martin grows 3,000 acres of soybeans on his own
farm and purchases 10 times that amount from area
farmers, who must adhere to a strict production
protocol to ensure purity. Bluegrass Farms cleans,
processes and bags the high-protein soybeans,
exporting about 1.5 million bushels annually.
Farm Credit has provided Martin with loans for land
improvement and new facilities to accommodate the
changing needs of his business.
David Martin, president and founder of Bluegrass Farms
Farm Credit Mid-America 13

127.9 million

$

interest rate savings
for customers as a result
of loan conversions

$

52% of loans

on a fixed rate
of 10 years or more

5.5 billion

in loans converted
to lower rates

32,477

loans converted
to lower rates

1.7 million

acres insured through
Farm Credit Mid-America

11.9% increase in crop
insurance acres insured

WE MANAGE RISK, SO OUR CUSTOMERS CAN MANAGE THEIR GOALS.
Risk is a constant in farming, so it’s important to have a partner you can trust
to help navigate rough waters. For 96 years, Farm Credit Mid-America has been
the partner our customers have leaned on in challenging times. Our goal is to not
simply sell a product but to provide solutions that help customers achieve their
goals, leverage opportunities and mitigate risk.
Above: Mike and Pam Hayes

WE MANAGE RISK, SO OUR CUSTOMERS CAN MANAGE THEIR GOALS.

Mike and Pam Hayes come from farm families and enjoy raising
their two children on the family farm near Hamlet in northwest
Indiana. Mike operates the corn, soybean and seed corn operation
full time, and Pam teaches third grade. Though most aspects of
the operation are fairly typical, Mike, who has farmed for 26 years,
has approached his Farm Credit Mid-America representative with
some nontraditional requests.
MIKE AND PAM HAYES
“Farm Credit helped me purchase my family’s interest
in a farm,” he explains. “They listened to our situation
and understood. Ultimately, we were able to arrive at
a solution acceptable to everyone.
“If a farmer has an idea that is a bit unorthodox or a little
different, Farm Credit will work to fully understand
that idea or vision,” he says. “I’ve met with Farm Credit
underwriters who took the time to listen to my ideas,
talk with me about my goals and help put ideas in motion.”
“We’ve chosen to do our business primarily with Farm
Credit because they are versatile and trusting,” adds
Pam. ”They encourage Mike to be a better farmer
through their support. They’re able to see his vision,
appreciate it and allow him to realize it.”
Mike says Farm Credit’s risk mitigation strategies
help facilitate a successful relationship. “Farm Credit
has fixed the interest rate for the life of my real estate
loan, which helps me keep better track of my finances
and payments.” Crop insurance products also help the
family mitigate risk.
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1.7

MILLION

acres insured through
farm credit mid-america

11.9

%

INCR E A SE IN CROP IN SU R ANCE ACR ES IN SU R E D.

A RELATIONSHIP BUILT ON TRUST
The Hayeses are also impressed by the ability of Farm
Credit employees to change loan terms even on fixed
rate products. They have taken advantage of Farm
Credit’s program that allows them to lower their
interest rates without the hassles of a traditional
refinance, thus reducing the interest rate expense
on their loans.
They use several Farm Credit products, including
operating, equipment and farm real estate financing
and crop insurance. “Our operating line of credit
fits the needs of my inputs and other unexpected
purchases that occur during the year,” says Mike.
“I purchase and lease equipment, which gives me
more flexibility.
“Farm Credit specializes in agriculture. As a customerowned cooperative, it looks out for its customers’ best
interests by providing excellent service and interest

rates that are better than those offered by other
lending institutions.”
“I love teaching and Mike loves farming,” says Pam.
“I’m happy he can work with partners like Farm Credit
that allow him to be flexible and are also supportive
of him. Having that kind of trusting relationship
makes him love his profession even more.”

FAR M CR E DIT IN T E R EST R AT ES
(as of December 31, 2012)

52.0% Fixed over 10 years
21.0% Fixed 2–5 years
18.0% Variable
4.7% Fixed 6–10 years
4.3% Fixed 1 year or less

Left: Financial Services Officer Max Niespodziany with Mike Hayes
Above: Mike Hayes and his dog, Diesel
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113,000

$

contributed toward
university initiatives

WE’RE ONLY AS STRONG AS THE COMMUNITIES WE SERVE.
Community: It’s where everything starts. Farm Credit Mid-America funds projects,
awards scholarships, provides internship opportunities and helps launch young
people in ag-related careers. We live and work in the communities we serve, so
we have a stake in their success, and in the success of their people. We’re always
looking for ways to make communities stronger. Because when rural America
grows, we all grow.
Keith Rogers, executive director, Kentucky 4-H Foundation; Dawnella and Damiana Camero, Kentucky 4-H members

25,000

$

in matching
funds from 4-H
donors

12,000 lbs.

222

new Farm Credit
employees welcomed

clothing donated to
overseas missions

14 capital investments
representing more than

$

1.6 million

$

allocated toward
community giving

350,000

125,000

$

awarded in
scholarships

WE’RE ONLY AS STRONG AS THE COMMUNITIES WE SERVE.

4-H is one of several youth organizations Farm Credit Mid-America
supports each year. After participating in 4-H youth programs, many
students in Indiana, Ohio, Kentucky and Tennessee go on to receive
college scholarships from and internship opportunities with Farm
Credit. Today, Farm Credit works with 4-H on capital projects, and
provides employment opportunities to young professionals who
want to live and work in the country.
KENTUCKY 4-H CAMPS
In 2012, Farm Credit Mid-America stepped up to
modernize Kentucky 4-H camps with a $50,000
grant from its Community Giving Program as well
as offer to match other donors’ gifts up to $25,000.
The donation — which ultimately raised more than
$100,000 — helped launch Phase II of the Camp
Improvement Campaign , starting with the J.M.
Feltner Memorial 4-H Camp near London, Kentucky.
“Most of our camps were developed in the 1950s and
‘60s, and there hasn’t been much infrastructure or
replacement work done,” says Keith Rogers, executive
director, Kentucky 4-H Foundation. “At some camps,
we had been housing campers in concrete block
buildings built in the 1930s, so we were badly in need
of an upgrade.”
Phase I of the project, completed in 2011, addressed
the most urgent infrastructure needs of the four
4-H camps located throughout the state. Phase II
includes replacing cabins with redesigned, 48-camper
structures with porches, indoor bathrooms, heating
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and air conditioning, and storm shelters. They will
be handicapped accessible and have wireless
internet capabilities.
“Farm Credit is one of the strongest agricultural
cooperatives in Kentucky, with leadership and staff
who are extremely involved in communities across
the state,” says Rogers. “It is committed to giving back
to the communities it serves.”
In addition to supporting camp improvements, Farm
Credit provides college scholarships to 4-H’ers who
are graduating high school seniors, sponsors the
Kentucky delegation to the annual National 4-H
Conference and supports other 4-H programs.
“As a fundraiser for the Kentucky 4-H Foundation,
sometimes my phone calls don’t get returned,”
says Rogers, a longtime Farm Credit Mid-America
customer who has a home loan with the association
and previously farmed full-time. “But that’s not the
case with Farm Credit staff. They’re always happy to
help. If I’ve got an idea, I can talk with them about it,
and soon we’re working on something together that
helps Kentucky 4-H — and Farm Credit.”

GARDENING FOR GREENBACKS

FLOURISHING WITH FARM CREDIT

Together, Farm Credit Mid-America, St.
Paul-based AgriBank and Denver-based
CoBank provide financial support for
beginning urban farmers in Cleveland as
part of the city’s Gardening for Greenbacks
program. Developed by the city of Cleveland,
the initiative aims to increase local food
production and establish the city as a model
for local food system development.

Growing up on a grain and livestock farm, Kip
Shoemaker’s relationship with Farm Credit MidAmerica came through 4-H and FFA. “Farm Credit
sponsored many of my events, from showing livestock
or entering projects at fairs to speaking contests,” he
says. “I became acquainted with what Farm Credit
was all about.”

By providing local entrepreneurs with financial
assistance to develop for-profit urban food
gardens, the program encourages economic
development while helping ensure residents
have access to fresh, healthful, affordable
food. In 2012, each of the agricultural lenders
committed $45,000 to the program for a total
contribution of $135,000.

Shoemaker was a Farm Credit intern while a student
at The Ohio State University, where he majored in
agricultural business and applied economics. In his
junior year, he won a Farm Credit scholarship. As a
new graduate, Shoemaker joined Farm Credit as a
financial services officer in Washington Court House,
Ohio, the same office that mentored him as an intern.

The Farm Credit donation will fund grants
of up to $5,000 to help Gardening for
Greenbacks participants buy tools, fencing
and irrigation systems. Grant recipients must
successfully complete a training class offered
by The Ohio State University Extension and
sell their produce locally.

Shoemaker believes his farm background has helped
him professionally. “Agriculture is a complex industry,
so knowing what customers are looking for helps
establish credibility. I enjoy watching customers grow
and helping them reach their goals.”
Top: Cleveland’s Gardening for Greenbacks
Above: Kip Shoemaker, Farm Credit Mid-America
Right: Farm Credit, CoBank and AgriBank present $45,000
to Cleveland’s Gardening for Greenbacks program
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LOANS

16.5

$

dollars in billions

$12.0

$13.1

$14.1

$15.0

2008
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2011
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dollars in millions

2012

288.6

$
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19.7
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1.0%

1.4%
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2008
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

CONSOLIDATED FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
2012

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

2011

2010

2009

2008

STATEMENT OF CONDITION DATA

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Loans
$16,526,875
$15,010,650 $14,088,862
$13,053,455
$12,013,166
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Allowance for loan losses
Net loans

60,650

80,734

125,787

64,453

32,571

16,466,225

14,929,916

13,963,075

12,989,002

11,980,595

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Investment
in AgriBank, FCB
440,925
422,124
416,714
411,986
405,524
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Investment
securities
1,450,877
1,410,903
1,263,985
1,055,803
786,302
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
14,350

Other property owned

30,309

23,907

12,887

4,325

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

684,663

712,020

775,089

788,379

753,289

$19,057,040

$17,505,272

$16,442,770

$15,258,057

$13,930,035

Other assets

Total assets

Obligations
with maturities of one year or less
$16,051,081
$14,790,190 $14,008,073
$13,039,148
$11,854,502
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Obligations with maturities greater than one year
Total liabilities

2,073

2,317

2,558

2,761

2,936

16,053,154

14,792,507

14,010,631

13,041,909

11,857,438

Protected
members’ equity
—
—
8
9
11
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Capital
stock and participation certificates
84,541
82,000
79,957
77,917
76,035
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2,919,345

Unallocated surplus

2,352,174

2,138,222

1,996,551

3,003,886

2,712,765

2,432,139

2,216,148

2,072,597

$19,057,040

$17,505,272

$16,442,770

$15,258,057

$13,930,035

Total members’ equity
Total liabilities and members’ equity

2,630,765

STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Net
interest income
$353,779
$316,475
$304,478
$256,305
$232,368
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Provision
for (reversal of) loan losses
2,791
(10,416)
95,084
62,668
18,046
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Patronage
income
65,374
61,748
78,909
57,817
45,002
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Other
expense, net
107,066
95,988
60,423
102,481
89,864
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Provision for income taxes
Net income

20,716

14,060

13,928

7,302

7,418

$288,580

$278,591

$213,952

$141,671

$162,042

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Return on average assets

1.6%

1.7%

1.4%

1.0%

1.2%

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Return on average members’ equity
10.1%
10.9%
9.2%
6.6%
8.1%
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Net interest income as a percentage of average earning assets

2.1%

2.0%

2.1%

1.9%

1.8%

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Members’ equity as a percentage of total assets
15.8%
15.5%
14.8%
14.5%
14.9%
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans

0.1%

0.2%

0.3%

0.3%

—

Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of loans

0.4%

0.5%

0.9%

0.5%

0.3%

15.5%

14.8%

14.0%

13.1%

13.3%

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Permanent capital ratio

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Total surplus ratio
15.0%
14.2%
13.5%
12.6%
12.7%
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Core surplus ratio

15.0%

14.2%

13.5%

12.6%

12.7%

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
No income was distributed to members in the form of cash patronage, dividends, stock, or allocated surplus during the five years presented.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The following commentary reviews the consolidated financial
position and consolidated results of operations of Farm Credit
Mid-America, ACA and its subsidiaries and provides additional
specific information. The accompanying consolidated financial
statements and notes to the consolidated financial statements
also contain important information about our financial position
and results of operations.
On February 1, 2013, our name was officially changed from Farm
Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA to Farm Credit Mid-America,
ACA. Our subsidiary entities were changed in a similar manner.

The Farm Credit System

• credit, interest rate, and liquidity risk inherent in our lending
activities, and
• changes in our assumptions for determining the allowance for
loan losses, other than temporary impairment, and fair value
measurements.

LOAN PORTFOLIO

Total loans were $16.5 billion at December 31, 2012, an increase of
$1.5 billion from December 31, 2011. The components of total loans
are outlined in the following table (in thousands):
AS OF DECEMBER 31

Real estate mortgage

2012

2011

2010

$11,143,868

$9,833,770

$8,982,719
2,619,882

.........................................................................................................................

The Farm Credit System (System) is a nationwide system of cooperatively owned banks and associations established by Congress to
meet the credit needs of American agriculture. At December 31,
2012, the System consisted of three Farm Credit Banks, one Agricultural Credit Bank, and 82 customer owned cooperative lending
institutions (associations). The System serves all 50 states,
Washington D.C., and Puerto Rico. This network of financial cooperatives is owned and operated by the rural customers the System
serves — the American farmer and rancher.

Production and
intermediate term

AgriBank, FCB (AgriBank), a System bank, and its affiliated associations are collectively referred to as the AgriBank Farm Credit District
(AgriBank District or the District). Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA is
one of the affiliated associations in the District.

The Other category is comprised of communication, energy, and
water and waste disposal related loans as well as loans originated
under our Mission Related Investment authority.

The Farm Credit Administration (FCA) is authorized by Congress
to regulate the System banks and associations. The Farm Credit
System Insurance Corporation (Insurance Corporation) ensures
the timely payment of principal and interest on Systemwide debt
obligations, the retirement of protected borrower capital at par or
stated value, and is used for other specified purposes.

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This Annual Report includes forward-looking statements. These
statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve
certain risks, uncertainties, and assumptions that are difficult to
predict. Words such as ‘‘anticipate’’, ‘‘believe’’, ‘‘estimate’’, ‘‘may’’,
‘‘expect’’, ‘‘intend’’, and similar expressions are used to identify
such forward-looking statements. These statements reflect our
current views with respect to future events. However, actual
results may differ materially from our expectations due to a number of risks and uncertainties which may be beyond our control.
These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to:
• political, legal, regulatory, financial, and economic conditions
and developments in the United States (U.S.) and abroad,
• economic fluctuations in the agricultural and farm-related
business sectors,
• unfavorable weather, disease, and other adverse climatic or
biological conditions that periodically occur and impact
agricultural productivity and income,
• changes in U.S. government support of the agricultural industry
and the System as a government-sponsored enterprise, as well as
investor and rating agency actions relating to events involving
the U.S. government, other government-sponsored enterprises,
and other financial institutions,
• actions taken by the Federal Reserve System in implementing
monetary policy,

2,780,370

2,794,943

Agribusiness

919,368

736,243

839,843

Rural residential real estate

1,011,067

1,003,519

1,024,374

Finance leases

320,618

280,361

293,060

Other

115,925

75,328

53,093

235,659

286,486

275,891

$16,526,875

$15,010,650

$14,088,862

.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................

Non-accrual
Total loans

The increase in total loans from December 31, 2011 was primarily
driven by strong business activity in mortgage and long-term
lending resulting from strong balance sheets of customers and
opportunities to finance new purchases or refinance at historically low rates.
We offer variable, fixed, capped, indexed, and adjustable interest
rate loan programs as well as variable and fixed lease programs to
our borrowers. We determine interest margins charged on each
lending program based on cost of funds, credit risk, market conditions, and the need to generate sufficient earnings.
As part of a separately maintained pool, we have sold participation
interests in real estate loans to AgriBank. The total participation
interests in this pool were $677.3 million, $840.8 million, and
$1.0 billion at December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.

Portfolio Distribution
GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION

(as of December 31, 2012)

26FEB201314072047
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Portfolio Distribution, cont.

is a repeat of last year or if the corn belt receives rain, grain producers are expected to have another profitable year in 2013. How
the weather affects the grain markets in 2013 will determine if
margins for livestock and poultry producers move from near
breakeven or losses to greater profitability.

AGRICULTURAL COMMODITIES

(as of December 31, 2012)

Local economic conditions continue to demonstrate slow improvement as economic growth remains sluggish and unemployment
remains high relative to history. The economy could face additional headwinds due to congressional action related to the
country’s fiscal situation, continued fiscal problems in Europe, or
economic or geopolitical shocks anywhere in the world.

Analysis of Risk

26FEB201314071791

The following table summarizes risk assets including accrued interest receivable and delinquency information (dollars in thousands):
AS OF DECEMBER 31

INTEREST RATE

2012

2011

2010

Loans:

.........................................................................................................................

Non-accrual

(as of December 31, 2012)

$235,659

$286,486

$275,891

10,358

10,222

10,150

.........................................................................................................................

Accruing restructured

.........................................................................................................................

Accruing loans 90 days or more
past due

Total risk loans

7,994

714

1,318

254,011

297,422

287,359

.........................................................................................................................

Other property owned
Total risk assets

26FEB201314072345

14,350

30,309

23,907

$268,361

$327,731

$311,266

Non-accrual loans as percentage
of total loans

1.4%

1.9%

1.9%

Risk loans as a percentage of total loans

1.5%

2.0%

2.0%

Total delinquencies as a percentage
of total loans

1.1%

1.4%

1.6%

.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................

Agricultural and Economic Conditions

The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) projects net farm
income of $114.0 billion in 2012, down 3.3% from 2011. Grain producers again received the majority of the net farm income, as
higher grain and feed prices reduced net cash income for livestock, poultry, and dairy producers. In addition, the USDA projects
2012 production expenses increased 7.6% over 2011. Since 2002
the USDA shows production expenses have increased 74.5%.
One perspective to demonstrate the severity of the 2012 drought
is from data showing the variance between the USDA’s corn yield
trend line and their national average estimated corn yield for 1930
through 2012. The negative variance between expected and actual
yield in 2012 was the fourth largest during this time period. The
only years where there was a greater negative variance were 1934,
1936, and 1988. While last year’s drought was extremely severe by
historical standards and may have caused significant adversity
for some, generally crop insurance provided a safety net for the
great majority of farmers who were affected by the drought.
In spite of the drought, cropland prices continued to increase during 2012. Although cropland prices have been increasing rapidly
the past three years, farmers are not leveraging their balance
sheets in order to purchase land. The USDA’s farm real estate debt
at the end of 2012 was little changed from a year earlier. Since
2008, total debt of U.S. farms has increased, but farm equity also
increased and the debt-to-asset ratio has fallen from 11.9% to
10.5%, showing, that as a group, farmers are less leveraged today
than four years ago. The overriding question for agriculture today
is whether the drought will continue into 2013. The National
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration predicts the drought
will persist into 2013, shifting further west in the corn belt. If 2013
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Our risk assets have decreased from December 31, 2011 and remain
at acceptable levels. Total risk loans as a percentage of total loans
remains within our established risk management guidelines.
During 2012, non-accrual volume decreased $50.8 million or 17.7%.
The reduction resulted from resolution of many loans through
negotiations or litigation. In addition, many customers whose
loans were restructured over 12 months ago, performed under the
terms of the restructure long enough to meet our requirements
to reinstate their loans to accrual status. Non-accrual loans
remained at an acceptable level at December 31, 2012, and represented 1.4% of our total portfolio. At December 31, 2012, 51.6% of
our non-accrual loans were current.
The increase in accruing loans 90 days or more past due was
primarily due to an increase in delinquency on a few large real
estate loans. Based on our analysis, all loans 90 days or more past
due and still accruing interest were adequately secured and in the
process of collection and, as such, were eligible to remain in accruing status.
The value of other property owned decreased $16.0 million or
52.7%. The inventory of other property owned has been increasing
over the past years. In the fourth quarter of 2011, the association
selected staff to specialize in managing our other property owned.
The allocation of resources focused on managing and marketing
these assets has resulted in reducing the volume of other property
owned through increased sales activity. Additionally, as nonaccrual volume has declined during 2012, fewer properties have
been acquired.

Portfolio Credit Quality

The level of adversely classified volume decreased from 3.9% of
the portfolio at December 31, 2011 to 3.4% of the portfolio at
December 31, 2012. Adversely classified loans are loans we have
identified as showing some credit weakness outside our credit
standards. Improvement in credit quality resulted from growth in
acceptable volume and reduction in adverse loans. Adverse loans
were reduced through collections as well as classification
upgrades of loans that have returned to performance and credit
characteristics that support the upgrade. We have considered
portfolio credit quality in assessing the reasonableness of our
allowance for loan losses.

Analysis of the Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is an estimate of losses on loans in
our portfolio as of the financial statement date. We determine the
appropriate level of allowance for loan losses based on the periodic evaluation of factors such as loan loss history, probability of
default, estimated severity of loss given default, portfolio quality,
and current economic and environmental conditions.
The following table presents allowance coverage, charge-off, and
adverse asset information:
AS OF DECEMBER 31

2012

2011

2010

Allowance as a percentage of:

.........................................................................................................................

0.4%

0.5%

0.9%

Non-accrual loans

25.7%

28.2%

45.6%

Total risk loans

23.9%

27.1%

43.8%

0.1%

0.2%

0.3%

22.5%

26.4%

29.4%

Loans

.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................

Net charge-offs as a percentage of
average loans

.........................................................................................................................

Adverse assets to risk funds

INVESTMENT SECURITIES AND OTHER EARNING ASSETS

In addition to loans, we hold investment securities and other earning assets. Investments include our share of loans guaranteed by
the Small Business Administration (SBA), Farm Services Administration securities (FSA), and securities issued by the U.S.
Department of Agriculture (USDA). Investment securities totaled
$1.5 billion, $1.4 billion, and $1.3 billion at December 31, 2012, 2011,
and 2010, respectively.

The investment portfolio is evaluated for other-than-temporary
impairment. To date, we have not recognized any impairment on
our investment portfolio.
Other earning assets result from successor-in-interest contracts
from our involvement with the federal government’s tobacco buyout program. The volume was $144.2 million, $210.9 million, and
$272.0 million at December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.
These amounts include both principal and interest income receivable. While these investments align well with our mission and
strategies, we discontinued the purchase of additional contracts
during 2011 due to the limited value to the customer as at that
time only three program payments remained.
Additional investment securities information is included in
Notes 5 and 14.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table illustrates profitability information (dollars
in thousands):
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

Net income

2012

2011

2010

$288,580

$278,591

$213,952

.........................................................................................................................

Return on average assets

1.6%

1.7%

1.4%

10.1%

10.9%

9.2%

.........................................................................................................................

The decrease in allowance for loan losses was primarily related to
additional consideration of customer level collateral reducing loss
given default expectations as well as improved credit quality offset by increased volume. In our opinion, the allowance for loan
losses was reasonable in relation to the risk in our loan portfolio at
December 31, 2012.
Additional loan information is included in Notes 3, 11, 12, 13, and 14.

Return on average members’ equity

Changes in these ratios relate directly to:
• changes in income as discussed below,
• changes in assets as discussed in the Loan Portfolio and
Investment Securities and Other Earning Assets sections, and
• changes in members’ equity as discussed in the Capital
Adequacy section.

The following table summarizes the changes in components of net income (in thousands):
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

Net interest income

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET INCOME

2012

2011

2010

2012 vs. 2011

$353,779

$316,475

$304,478

$37,304

2011 vs. 2010

$11,997

2,791

(10,416)

95,084

(13,207)

105,500

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Provision for (reversal of) loan losses

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Patronage income

65,374

61,748

78,909

3,626

(17,161)

Other income, net

34,438

26,798

51,104

7,640

(24,306)

Operating expenses

141,504

122,786

111,527

(18,718)

(11,259)

20,716

14,060

13,928

(6,656)

(132)

$288,580

$278,591

$213,952

$9,989

$64,639

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Provision for income taxes
Net income
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Net Interest Income

Net interest income was $353.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The following table quantifies changes in net interest
income (in thousands):
2012 vs. 2011

2011 vs. 2010

$31,564

$23,265

4,264

(12,759)

Changes in volume

.........................................................................................................................

Changes in rates

.........................................................................................................................

Changes in non-accrual income and other
Net change

1,476

1,491

$37,304

$11,997

Net interest income included income on non-accrual loans that
totaled $11.2 million, $9.7 million, and $4.7 million in 2012, 2011,
and 2010, respectively. Non-accrual income is recognized when:
• received in cash,
• collection of the recorded investment is fully expected, and
• prior charge-offs have been recovered.
Net interest margin (net interest income divided by average earning
assets) was 2.1%, 2.0%, and 2.1% in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.
Net interest margin increased slightly over the prior year, primarily
due to volume originating at higher spreads in comparison to existing
volume originated in prior periods and significant interest rate
conversion activity. Margins could be compressed in the future as
interest rates rise and competition increases.

Provision for (Reversal of) Loan Losses

Although credit quality has improved, the provision for loan losses
in 2012 was higher as a result of the enhancement to the allowance
methodology implemented during 2011 whereby loss given default
expectations were reduced due to the additional consideration of
customer level collateral. Refer to Note 3 for additional discussion.

Patronage Income

We received patronage income based on the average balance of
our note payable to AgriBank. AgriBank’s Board of Directors sets
the patronage rate. We recorded patronage income of $47.9 million, $42.7 million, and $54.4 million in 2012, 2011, and 2010,
respectively. Changes in our note payable to AgriBank and
patronage rate changes caused the variances in the patronage
income amounts. The patronage rates paid by AgriBank were 32
basis points, 31 basis points, and 42 basis points in 2012, 2011, and
2010, respectively.
Since 2008 we have participated in the asset pool program with
AgriBank in which we sold participation interests in certain real
estate loans. As part of this program we received patronage
income in an amount that approximated the net earnings of loans.
Net earnings represents the net interest income associated with
these loans adjusted for certain fees and costs specific to the
related loans as well as adjustments deemed appropriate by
AgriBank related to the credit performance of the loans, as applicable. In addition, we received patronage income in an amount
that approximated the wholesale patronage had we retained the
volume. Patronage declared on these pools is solely at the discretion of the AgriBank Board of Directors. We recorded asset pool
patronage income of $17.4 million, $19.0 million, and $24.5 million
in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. The patronage recorded
included $1.2 million and $1.4 million of our share of the distribution from the Allocated Insurance Reserve Accounts (AIRA)
related to the asset pool program in 2012 and 2010, respectively.
These reserve accounts were established in previous years by the
Insurance Corporation when premiums collected increased the
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level of the Farm Credit Insurance Fund beyond the required 2%
of insured debt. No such distribution was received in 2011.

Other Income

The change in other income was primarily due to our share of
distributions from AIRA of $16.3 million partially offset by writedowns related to our other property owned. We received $14.9 million of distributions from AIRA in 2010 and there was no
distribution in 2011.

Operating Expenses

The following presents a comparison of operating expenses by
major category and the operating rate (operating expenses as a
percentage of average earning assets) for the past three years
(dollars in thousands):
2012

2011

2010

Salaries and employee benefits

$87,079

$72,879

$68,883

Purchased and vendor services

8,390

7,369

6,334

Communications

2,770

2,020

1,963

Occupancy and equipment

10,500

11,087

9,313

Advertising and promotion

9,265

8,568

6,866
2,564

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................

Examination

2,881

2,775

Farm Credit System insurance

7,235

8,079

6,715

13,384

10,009

8,889

$141,504

$122,786

$111,527

0.8%

0.8%

0.8%

.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................

Other

Total operating expenses
Operating rate

The change in operating expenses was primarily related to increased
staffing during the year, but the operating rate is stable due to corresponding increase in earning assets.

Provision for Income Taxes

The increase in provision for income taxes was due to increased
income in our taxable entity during the year. Refer to Note 9 for
additional discussion.

FUNDING AND LIQUIDITY

Funding

We borrow from AgriBank under a note payable, in the form of a
line of credit, as described in Note 7. During 2012, our average balance was $15.0 billion with an average interest rate of 2.3%. Our
average balance during 2011 was $13.8 billion with an average
interest rate of 2.7% and during 2010 our average balance was
$12.9 billion with an average interest rate of 3.3%. Our other
source of lendable funds is from unallocated surplus. The repricing attributes of our line of credit generally correspond to the
repricing attributes of our loan portfolio which significantly
reduces our market interest rate risk.

Liquidity

Our approach to sustaining sufficient liquidity to fund operations
and meet current obligations is to maintain an adequate line of
credit with AgriBank. At December 31, 2012, we had $795.4 million
available under our line of credit. We generally apply excess cash
to this line of credit.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

Total members’ equity increased $291.1 million during 2012 primarily due to net income for the period and an increase in capital
stock and participation certificates.

Members’ equity position information follows (dollars in thousands):
AS OF DECEMBER 31

2012

2011

2010

$3,003,886

$2,712,765

$2,432,139

Surplus as a percentage
of members’ equity

97.2%

97.0%

96.7%

Permanent capital ratio

15.5%

14.8%

14.0%

Total surplus ratio

15.0%

14.2%

13.5%

Core surplus ratio

15.0%

14.2%

13.5%

Members’ equity

.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................

Customer Focus

To improve our service to all customers we created and staffed a
new division to meet the needs of the largest customers in our
four states. While the division was formed to work with the largest customers, our objective was to further segment our portfolio
and fully staff to provide a higher level of service to all current
and potential customers.

.........................................................................................................................

Our capital plan is designed to maintain an adequate amount of
surplus and allowance for loan losses which represents our
reserve for adversity prior to impairment of stock. We manage our
capital to allow us to meet member needs and protect member
interests, both now and in the future.
At December 31, 2012, our permanent capital, total surplus, and
core surplus ratios exceeded the regulatory minimum requirements. Additional discussion of these regulatory ratios is included
in Note 8.
In addition to these regulatory requirements, we establish an optimum permanent capital target. This target allows us to maintain a
capital base adequate for future growth and investment in new
products and services. The target is subject to revision as circumstances change. As of December 31, 2012, our optimum permanent
capital target was 15.0%.
The changes in our capital ratios reflect changes in capital and
assets. Refer to the Loan Portfolio and the Investment Securities
and Other Earning Assets sections for further discussion of the
changes in assets. Additional members’ equity information is
included in Note 8.
The board continues to advocate low rates upfront without
patronage payments as members believe this strategy provides the
most value to existing and future members of the cooperative.

INITIATIVES

We have been involved in a number of initiatives designed to
improve our credit delivery, related services, and marketplace
presence. These include, but are not limited to:
• Agnition
• Farm Cash Management
• Customer Focus
• Continuous Improvement
• Human Capital Development
• Farm Credit Leasing

Agnition

Agnition is our branded trade credit program. We have agreements with farm equipment dealers across the four-state service
area in order to provide a point of sale financing option. This program continues to increase our market share in equipment
financing, as well as increase overall business through loans and
leases made to new Agnition customers.

Farm Cash Management

We offer Farm Cash Management to our members. Farm Cash
Management links members’ revolving lines of credit with an
AgriBank investment bond to optimize members’ use of funds.

Continuous Improvement

To become more efficient and improve the customer experience, we
began implementing a disciplined approach to Continuous Improvement in 2011. Using time-tested tools like Lean and Six Sigma, we
are gaining a better understanding of how our processes, people,
and technology work together. So far, we have implemented dozens
of improvements that help eliminate frustrating and unnecessary
steps for both our team members and customers.

Human Capital Development

Throughout 2012, we hired and developed enough new people to
grow our human capital base by 156 people. These positions were
added to meet marketplace demands, improve the customer experience, and prepare for planned retirements over the next few
years. Development of the entire workforce also continued in
areas including credit, critical thinking, and coaching.

Farm Credit Leasing

In September of 2012 we launched a partnership with Farm Credit
Leasing. Farm Credit Leasing is a System entity that specializes in
leasing products and provides industry expertise. Leases
originated are maintained on the books of Farm Credit Leasing
and we purchase a 50% interest in the asset. At December 31, 2012
there was approximately $7.4 million in lease volume outstanding
under this new initiative of which we held $3.7 million.

RELATIONSHIP WITH AGRIBANK

Borrowing

We borrow from AgriBank to fund our lending operations in
accordance with the Farm Credit Act. Approval from AgriBank is
required for us to borrow elsewhere. A General Financing Agreement, as discussed in Note 7, governs this lending relationship.
Cost of funds under the General Financing Agreement includes:
• a marginal cost of debt component,
• a spread component, which includes cost of servicing, cost of
liquidity, and bank profit, and
• a risk premium component, if applicable.
The marginal cost of debt approach simulates matching the cost
of underlying debt with substantially the same terms as the
anticipated terms of our loans to borrowers. This methodology
substantially protects us from market interest rate risk.
In the periods presented, we were not subject to the risk premium
component.

Investment

We are required to invest in AgriBank capital stock as a condition
of borrowing. This investment may be in the form of purchased
stock or stock representing previously distributed AgriBank surplus. As of December 31, 2012, we were required to maintain a
stock investment equal to 2.5% of the average quarterly balance
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of our note payable to AgriBank plus an additional 1.0% on growth
that exceeded a targeted rate. AgriBank’s current bylaws allow
AgriBank to increase the required investment to 4.0%. However,
AgriBank currently has not communicated a plan to increase the
required investment.
In addition, we are required to hold AgriBank stock equal to 8.0%
of the quarter end asset pool program participation loan balance.
At December 31, 2012, $300.7 million of our investment in
AgriBank consisted of stock representing distributed AgriBank
surplus and $140.2 million consisted of purchased investment.
For the periods presented in this report, we have received no dividend income on this stock investment and we do not anticipate
any in future years.

Patronage

We receive different types of discretionary patronage from
AgriBank. AgriBank’s Board of Directors sets the level of
patronage for each of the following:
• patronage on our note payable with AgriBank and
• patronage based on the balance and net earnings of the pool of
loans sold to AgriBank.

information systems, payroll, and workforce management services
were purchased from Farm Credit Foundations (Foundations).
Foundations was operated as part of AgriBank prior to January 1,
2012 when it formed a System service corporation and thus is no
longer operated as part of AgriBank. As of December 31, 2012, our
investment in Foundations was $113 thousand. The total cost of
services we purchased from Foundations was $530 thousand in 2012.

Impact on Members’ Investment

Due to the nature of our financial relationship with AgriBank, the
financial condition and results of operations of AgriBank materially impact our members’ investment. To request free copies of
the AgriBank and the combined AgriBank and Affiliated Associations’ financial reports contact us at:

Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA
P.O. Box 34390
Louisville, KY, 40232
(800) 444-FARM
www.e-farmcredit.com
Or contact AgriBank at:

Purchased Services

AgriBank, FCB
30 East 7th Street, Suite 1600
St. Paul, MN 55101
(651) 282-8800
www.agribank.com

The total cost of services we purchased from AgriBank was
$5.3 million, $5.1 million, and $4.8 million in 2012, 2011, and 2010,
respectively. Beginning in January 2012, benefit, human resource

To request free copies of our Annual or Quarterly Reports contact
us as stated above. The Annual Report is available on our website
no later than 75 days after the end of the calendar year and members are provided a copy of such report no later than 90 days after
the end of the calendar year. The Quarterly Reports are available
on our website approximately 40 days after the end of each calendar quarter.

Patronage income on our note payable with AgriBank was
received in the form of cash and AgriBank stock.
We purchase various services from AgriBank including certain:
• financial and retail systems, support, and reporting,
• technology services, and
• insurance services.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT
We prepare the consolidated financial statements of Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA (the Association) and are responsible for their
integrity and objectivity, including amounts that must necessarily be based on judgments and estimates. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The consolidated financial statements, in our opinion, fairly present the financial condition of the Association. Other financial information
included in the Annual Report is consistent with that on the consolidated financial statements.
To meet our responsibility for reliable financial information, we depend on accounting and internal control systems designed to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded and transactions are properly authorized and recorded. Costs
must be reasonable in relation to the benefits derived when designing accounting and internal control systems. Financial operations
audits are performed to monitor compliance. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent auditors, audit the consolidated financial
statements. They also conduct a review of internal controls to the extent necessary to comply with generally accepted auditing standards in the United States of America. The Farm Credit Administration also performs examinations for safety and soundness as well as
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for our system of internal control and financial reporting. The Board of Directors and
its Audit Committee consults regularly with us and meets periodically with the independent auditors and other auditors to review the
scope and results of their work. The independent auditors have direct access to the Board of Directors, which is composed solely of
directors who are not officers or employees of the Association.
The undersigned certify we have reviewed the Association’s Annual Report and it has been prepared in accordance with all applicable
statutory or regulatory requirements and the information contained herein is true, accurate, and complete to the best of our knowledge and belief.

21FEB201319242487
D. Kevin Cox
Chair of the Board
Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA

21FEB201316121069

William L. Johnson
Chief Executive Officer
Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA

21FEB201316115276

Paul Bruce
Chief Financial Officer
Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA
March 15, 2013
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
The Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA (the Association) principal executives and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for the Association’s
consolidated financial statements. For purposes of this report, ‘‘internal control over financial reporting’’ is defined as a process
designed by, or under the supervision of the Association’s principal executives and principal financial officers, or persons performing
similar functions, and effected by its Board of Directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting information and the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and includes those policies and procedures
that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the Association, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial information in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and that receipts
and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Association, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Association’s
assets that could have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.
The Association’s management has completed an assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2012. In making the assessment, management used the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework, promulgated by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, commonly referred to as the ‘‘COSO’’ criteria.
Based on the assessment performed, the Association concluded that as of December 31, 2012, the internal control over financial reporting was effective based upon the COSO criteria. Additionally, based on this assessment, the Association determined that there were no
material weaknesses in the internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012.

21FEB201316121069

William L. Johnson
Chief Executive Officer
Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA

21FEB201316115276

Paul Bruce
Chief Financial Officer
Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA
March 15, 2013
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REPORT OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
The consolidated financial statements were prepared under the oversight of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is composed of
five members of the Board of Directors of Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA (the Association). The Audit Committee oversees the scope of
the Association’s internal audit program, the approval, and independence of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) as independent auditors, the adequacy of the Association’s system of internal controls and procedures, and the adequacy of management’s action with
respect to recommendations arising from those auditing activities. The Audit Committee’s responsibilities are described more fully in
the Internal Control Policy and the Audit Committee Charter.
Management is responsible for internal controls and the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. PwC is responsible for performing an independent audit of
the consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the United States of America and to
issue their report based on their audit. The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include monitoring and overseeing these processes.
In this context, the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, with management. The Audit Committee also reviewed with PwC the matters required to be discussed by Statement on
Auditing Standards No. 114, The Auditor’s Communication with Those Charged with Governance, and both PwC and the internal auditors directly provided reports on significant matters to the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee had discussions with and received written disclosures from PwC confirming its independence. The Audit Committee also reviewed the non-audit services provided by PwC, if any, and concluded these services were not incompatible with
maintaining PwC’s independence. The Audit Committee discussed with management and PwC such other matters and received such
assurances from them as the Audit Committee deemed appropriate.
Based on the foregoing review and discussions, and relying thereon, the Audit Committee recommended that the Board of Directors
include the audited consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2012.

James William Patterson
Chair of the Audit
Committee
27FEB201312182452
Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA
Audit Committee Members:
Barney Barnett
Robert E. Barton
James William Patterson
George E. Stebbins
David E. Hahn
March 15, 2013
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7MAR201319572341

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Members of Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA (formerly Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA),
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA, formerly Farm
Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA, (the Association) and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of
condition as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in
members’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the Association’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

27FEB201312360068
March 15, 2013

....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
..
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 225 South Sixth Street, Suite 1400, Minneapolis, MN 55402
..

T: (612) 596 6000, www.pwc.com/us
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONDITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31 (IN THOUSANDS)

2012

2011

2010

ASSETS

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Loans
$16,526,875
$15,010,650 $14,088,862
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Allowance for loan losses
Net loans

60,650

80,734

125,787

16,466,225

14,929,916

13,963,075

Investment
in AgriBank, FCB
440,925
422,124
416,714
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Investment
securities
1,450,877
1,410,903
1,263,985
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Accrued
interest receivable
129,699
128,900
130,802
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Premises
and equipment, net
42,380
32,851
34,010
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Other
earning assets
144,199
210,945
271,957
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Other
property owned
14,350
30,309
23,907
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Assets
held for lease, net
323,065
281,646
258,375
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Other assets

Total assets

45,320

57,678

79,945

$19,057,040

$17,505,272

$16,442,770

LIABILITIES

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Note
payable to AgriBank, FCB
$15,818,603 $14,578,386 $13,800,593
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Accrued
interest payable
81,645
92,107
98,291
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Deferred
tax liabilities, net
101,758
82,361
68,224
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Contingencies and commitments

51,148

39,653

43,523

16,053,154

14,792,507

14,010,631

—

—

—

MEMBERS’ EQUITY

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Protected
members’ equity
—
—
8
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Capital
stock and participation certificates
84,541
82,000
79,957
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Unallocated surplus

Total members’ equity
Total liabilities and members’ equity

2,919,345

2,630,765

2,352,174

3,003,886

2,712,765

2,432,139

$19,057,040

$17,505,272

$16,442,770

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 (IN THOUSANDS)

2012

2011

2010

Interest
income
$693,885 $695,109 $725,790
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Interest expense

340,106

378,634

421,312

Net interest income
353,779
316,475
304,478
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Provision for (reversal of) loan losses

Net interest income after provision for (reversal of) loan losses

2,791

(10,416)

95,084

350,988

326,891

209,394

OTHER INCOME

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Patronage
income
65,374
61,748
78,909
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Financially
related services income
5,993
5,649
7,318
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Fee
income
10,733
12,291
17,475
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Allocated
insurance reserve accounts distribution
16,332
—
14,922
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Operating
lease income
11,483
11,674
11,580
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Other
property owned losses, net
(10,536)
(3,974)
(763)
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Miscellaneous income, net
Total other income

433

1,158

572

99,812

88,546

130,013

OPERATING EXPENSES

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Salaries
and employee benefits
87,079
72,879
68,883
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

54,425

49,907

42,644

141,504

122,786

111,527

Income
before income taxes
309,296
292,651
227,880
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Provision for income taxes
Net income
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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20,716

14,060

13,928

$288,580

$278,591

$213,952

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS’ EQUITY

(IN THOUSANDS)

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2009

PROTECTED
MEMBERS’ EQUITY

CAPITAL STOCK
AND PARTICIPATION
CERTIFICATES

UNALLOCATED
SURPLUS

TOTAL
MEMBERS’ EQUITY

$9

$77,917

$2,138,222

$2,216,148

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Net
income
—
—
213,952
213,952
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Capital
stock/participation certificates issued
—
6,942
—
6,942
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Capital stock/participation certificates retired

(1)

(4,902)

—

(4,903)

8
79,957
2,352,174
2,432,139
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2010

Net
income
—
—
278,591
278,591
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Capital
stock/participation certificates issued
—
6,811
—
6,811
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Capital stock/participation certificates retired

(8)

(4,768)

—

(4,776)

—
82,000
2,630,765
2,712,765
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2011

Net
income
—
—
288,580
288,580
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Capital
stock/participation certificates issued
—
7,808
—
7,808
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Capital stock/participation certificates retired
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

—

(5,267)

—

(5,267)

$—

$84,541

$2,919,345

$3,003,886

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 (IN THOUSANDS)

2012

2011

2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Net income

$288,580

$278,591

$213,952

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Depreciation on premises and equipment
3,839
4,115
4,269
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Loss (gain) on sale of premises and equipment

137

(132)

11

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Depreciation on assets held for lease
47,361
37,959
36,306
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Gain on disposal of assets held for lease

(240)

(380)

(130)

Amortization of premiums on investment securities

16,931

14,778

13,793

2,791

(10,416)

95,084

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Provision for (reversal of) loan losses

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Stock patronage received from AgriBank, FCB
(23,969)
(27,889)
(19,721)
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Loss on other property owned

9,945

3,227

401

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Accrued interest receivable

(7,844)

(5,005)

(12,143)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Other assets
12,471
22,267
(23,871)
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Accrued interest payable

(10,462)

(6,184)

(15,984)

30,892

10,267

14,955

370,432

321,198

306,922

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Increase in loans, net

(1,536,483)

(967,981)

(1,079,280)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Redemptions of investment in AgriBank, FCB, net
5,168
22,479
14,993
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Purchases of investment in other Farm Credit Institutions, net

(113)

—

—

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Increase in investment securities, net
(56,905)
(161,696)
(221,975)
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Decrease in other earning assets, net

66,746

61,012

49,139

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Purchases of assets held for lease, net
(88,540)
(60,850)
(43,071)
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Proceeds from sales of other property owned

12,673

10,393

7,368

(13,505)

(2,824)

(4,449)

(1,610,959)

(1,099,467)

(1,277,275)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Purchases of premises and equipment, net
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Increase in note payable to AgriBank, FCB, net

1,240,217

777,793

310

476

602

1,240,527

778,269

970,353

—

—

—

969,751

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Capital stock and participation certificates issued, net
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net change in cash

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

—

—

—

$—

$—

$—

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH ACTIVITIES

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Stock financed by loan activities

$6,221

$5,281

$5,385

3,975

3,710

3,937

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Stock applied against loan principal

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Stock applied against interest
15
12
11
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Interest transferred to loans

7,030

6,895

7,218

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Loans transferred to other property owned
10,815
20,022
18,789
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Financed sales of other property owned

4,156

—

—

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Interest paid

$350,568

$384,818

$437,296

3,334

986

4,311

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Taxes paid

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1
ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS
System and District

The Farm Credit System (System) is a nationwide system of cooperatively owned banks and associations established by Congress to
meet the credit needs of American agriculture. At December 31,
2012, the System consisted of three Farm Credit Banks, one Agricultural Credit Bank, and 82 associations. AgriBank, FCB (AgriBank), a
System bank, and its affiliated associations are collectively referred
to as the AgriBank Farm Credit District (AgriBank District or the
District). At December 31, 2012, the District consisted of 17 Agricultural Credit Associations (ACA) that each have wholly-owned
Federal Land Credit Association (FLCA) and Production Credit Association (PCA) subsidiaries.
FLCAs are authorized to originate long-term real estate mortgage
loans. PCAs are authorized to originate short-term and intermediate-term loans. ACAs are authorized to originate long-term real
estate mortgage loans and short-term and intermediate-term
loans either directly or through their subsidiaries. Associations
are authorized to provide lease financing options for agricultural
purposes and are also authorized to purchase and hold certain
types of investments. AgriBank provides funding to all associations chartered within the District.
Associations are authorized to provide, either directly or in participation with other lenders, credit and related services to eligible
borrowers. Eligible borrowers may include farmers, ranchers, producers or harvesters of aquatic products, rural residents, and
farm-related service businesses. In addition, associations can participate with other lenders in loans to similar entities. Similar
entities are parties that are not eligible for a loan from a System
lending institution, but have operations that are functionally similar to the activities of eligible borrowers.
The Farm Credit Administration (FCA) is authorized by Congress
to regulate the System banks and associations. We are examined
by the FCA and certain association actions are subject to the prior
approval of the FCA and/or AgriBank.
The Farm Credit Act established the Farm Credit System Insurance
Corporation (Insurance Corporation) to administer the Farm Credit
Insurance Fund (Insurance Fund). The Insurance Fund is used:
• to ensure the timely payment of principal and interest on Farm
Credit Systemwide debt obligations,
• to ensure the retirement of protected borrower capital at par
or stated value, and
• for other specified purposes.
At the discretion of the Insurance Corporation, the Insurance Fund
is also available to provide assistance to certain troubled System
institutions and for the operating expenses of the Insurance
Corporation. Each System bank is required to pay premiums into
the Insurance Fund until the assets in the Insurance Fund equal 2%
of the aggregated insured obligations adjusted to reflect the
reduced risk on loans or investments guaranteed by federal or state

governments. This percentage of aggregate obligations can be
changed by the Insurance Corporation, at its sole discretion, to a
percentage it determines to be actuarially sound.
The basis for assessing premiums is debt outstanding with
adjustments made for non-accrual loans and impaired investment
securities which are assessed a surcharge while guaranteed loans
and investment securities are deductions from the premium base.
AgriBank, in turn, assesses premiums to the associations each
year based on similar factors.

Association

On February 1, 2013, our name was officially changed from Farm
Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA to Farm Credit Mid-America,
ACA. Our subsidiary entities were changed in a similar manner.
Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA and its subsidiaries, Farm Credit
Mid-America, FLCA and Farm Credit Mid-America, PCA (the subsidiaries) are lending institutions of the System. We are a memberowned cooperative providing credit and credit-related services to,
or for the benefit of, eligible members for qualified agricultural purposes in all counties in Indiana; all counties in Ohio, with the
exception of Marion, Crawford, Wyandot, Hancock, Seneca, Wood,
Ottawa, Lucas, and Sandusky; all counties in Kentucky, with the
exception of Graves, Hickman, Carlisle, Fulton, Ballard, McCracken,
Calloway, and Marshall; and all counties in Tennessee.
We borrow from AgriBank and provide financing and related services to our members. Our ACA holds all the stock of the FLCA and
PCA subsidiaries.
We, along with certain other System institutions, own Farm Credit
Foundations (Foundations) which provides benefit, human
resource information systems, payroll, and workforce management services.
We offer various risk management services, including crop hail,
and multi-peril crop insurance for borrowers and those eligible
to borrow.

2
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting Principles and Reporting Policies

Our accounting and reporting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and
the prevailing practices within the financial services industry. Preparing financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Certain amounts in prior years’ financial statements have been
reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.
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Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements present the consolidated
financial results of Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA and its subsidiaries. All material intercompany transactions and balances have
been eliminated in consolidation.

Significant Accounting Policies

Loans: Loans are carried at their principal amount outstanding net
of any unearned income, cumulative charge-offs, unamortized
deferred fees and costs on originated loans, and unamortized premiums or discounts on purchased loans. Loan interest is accrued
and credited to interest income based upon the daily principal
amount outstanding. Material fees, net of related costs, are
deferred and recognized over the life of the loan as an adjustment
to net interest income. Other loan fees are netted with the related
origination costs and included as an adjustment to net interest
income. The net amount of these fees and expenses are not material
to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.
We place loans in non-accrual status when:
• principal or interest is delinquent for 90 days or more (unless
the loan is well secured and in the process of collection) or
• circumstances indicate that full collection is not expected.
When a loan is placed in non-accrual status, we reverse current year
accrued interest to the extent principal plus accrued interest before the
transfer exceeds the net realizable value of the collateral. Any unpaid
interest accrued in a prior year is capitalized to the recorded investment
of the loan. Any cash received on non-accrual loans is applied to reduce
the recorded investment in the loan, except in those cases where the
collection of the recorded investment is fully expected and the loan does
not have any unrecovered prior charge-offs. In these circumstances
interest is credited to income when cash is received. Loans are chargedoff at the time they are determined to be uncollectible. Non-accrual loans
may be returned to accrual status when:
• principal and interest are current,
• prior charge-offs have been recovered,
• the ability of the borrower to fulfill the contractual repayment
terms is fully expected,
• the borrower has demonstrated payment performance, and
• the loan is not classified as doubtful or loss.
In situations where, for economic or legal reasons related to the
borrower’s financial difficulties, we grant a concession for other than
an insignificant period of time to the borrower that we would not
otherwise consider, the related loan is classified as a troubled debt
restructuring, also known as formally restructured. A concession is
generally granted in order to minimize economic loss and avoid
foreclosure. Concessions vary by program and borrower and may
include interest rate reductions, term extensions, payment deferrals,
or an acceptance of additional collateral in lieu of payments. In
limited circumstances, principal may be forgiven. Loans classified as
troubled debt restructurings are considered risk loans.
Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses is an estimate of losses in our loan portfolio as of the financial statement
date. We determine the appropriate level of allowance for loan
losses based on periodic evaluation of factors such as:
• loan loss history,
• probability of default,
• severity of loss given default,
• portfolio quality, and
• current economic and environmental conditions.
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Loans in our portfolio that are considered impaired are analyzed
individually to establish a specific allowance for impaired loans. A
loan is impaired when it is probable that all amounts due under
the contractual terms of the loan agreement will not be collected.
We generally measure impairment based on the net realizable
value of the collateral. All risk loans are considered to be impaired
loans. Risk loans include:
• non-accrual loans,
• accruing restructured loans, and
• accruing loans 90 days or more past due.
We record a specific allowance to reduce the carrying amount of
the risk loan to the lower of book value or the net realizable value
of collateral. When we deem a loan to be uncollectible, we charge
the loan principal and prior year(s) accrued interest against the
allowance for loan losses. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are added
to the allowance for loan losses.
An allowance is recorded for probable and estimable credit losses as
of the financial statement date for loans that are not individually
assessed as impaired. We use a two-dimensional loan risk rating
model that incorporates a 14-point rating scale to identify and track
the probability of borrower default and a separate 6-point scale that
considers the amount of a possible loss if default occurs. The
combination of estimated default probability and loss given default
is the primary basis for recognition and measurement of loan
collectability of these pools of loans.
Changes in the allowance for loan losses consist of provision
activity, recorded in ‘‘Provision for (reversal of) loan losses’’ on the
Consolidated Statements of Income, recoveries, and charge-offs.
Investment in AgriBank: Accounting for our stock investment in
AgriBank is on a cost plus allocated equities basis.
Investment Securities: We are authorized to purchase and hold
certain types of investments. As we have the positive intent and
ability to hold these investments to maturity, they have been classified as held-to-maturity and are carried at cost adjusted for the
amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts. If an investment is determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired, the
carrying value of the security is written down to fair value. The
impairment loss is separated into credit related and non-credit
related components. The credit related component is expensed
through earnings in the period of impairment. The non-credit
related component is recognized in other comprehensive income
and amortized over the remaining life of the security as an
increase in the security’s carrying amount.
Premises and Equipment: The carrying amount of premises and
equipment is at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Calculation of
depreciation is generally on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Gains or losses on disposition are
included in ‘‘Miscellaneous income, net’’ on the Consolidated Statements of Income. Depreciation and maintenance and repairs
expenses are included in ‘‘Other operating expenses’’ on the Consolidated Statements of Income and improvements are capitalized.
Other Property Owned: Other property owned, consisting of real
and personal property acquired through foreclosure or deed in
lieu of foreclosure, is recorded at fair value less estimated selling
costs upon acquisition. Any initial reduction in the carrying
amount of a loan to the fair value of the collateral received is

charged to the allowance for loan losses. Revised estimates to the
fair value less cost to sell are reported as adjustments to the carrying amount of the asset, provided that such adjusted value is not
in excess of the carrying amount at acquisition. Related income,
expenses, and gains or losses from operations and carrying value
adjustments are included in ‘‘Other property owned losses, net’’ on
the Consolidated Statements of Income.
Leases: We have finance and operating leases. Under finance
leases, unearned income from lease contracts represents the
excess of gross lease receivables plus residual receivables over the
cost of leased equipment. We amortize net unearned finance
income to earnings using the interest method. The carrying
amount of finance leases is included in ‘‘Loans’’ on the Consolidated Statements of Condition and represents lease rent
receivables net of the unearned income plus the residual receivable. We recognize operating lease revenue evenly over the term of
the lease in ‘‘Operating lease income’’ on the Consolidated Statements of Income. We charge depreciation and other expenses
against revenue as incurred. The carrying amount of operating
leases is included in ‘‘Assets held for lease, net’’ on the Consolidated Statements of Condition and represents the asset cost net
of accumulated depreciation.
Post-Employment Benefit Plans: The District has various post-employment benefit plans in which Association employees participate.
The defined contribution plan allows eligible employees to save
for their retirement either pre-tax, post-tax, or both, with an
employer match on a percentage of the employee’s contributions.
We provide benefits under this plan in the form of a fixed percentage of salary contribution in addition to the employer match.
Employer contributions are expensed when incurred.
Certain employees also participate in the defined benefit retirement plan of the District. The plan is comprised of two benefit
formulas. At their option, employees hired prior to October 1, 2001
are on the cash balance formula or on the final average pay
formula. Between October 1, 2001 and December 31, 2006, all new
benefits-eligible employees are on the cash balance formula.
Effective January 1, 2007, the defined benefit retirement plan was
closed to new employees. The District plan utilizes the ‘‘Projected
Unit Credit’’ actuarial method for financial reporting purposes and
the ‘‘Entry Age Normal Cost’’ method for funding purposes.
Certain employees also participate in the non-qualified defined
benefit Pension Restoration Plan of the AgriBank District. This
plan restores retirement benefits to certain highly compensated
eligible employees that would have been provided under the qualified plan if such benefits were not above the Internal Revenue
Code compensation or other limits.
We also provide certain health insurance benefits to eligible
retired employees according to the terms of those benefit plans.
The anticipated cost of these benefits is accrued during the
employees’ active service period.
Income Taxes: The ACA and PCA accrue federal and state income
taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for future
tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts and tax basis of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets
are recorded if the deferred tax asset is more likely than not to be
realized. If the realization test cannot be met, the deferred tax

asset is reduced by a valuation allowance. The expected future tax
consequences of uncertain income tax positions are accrued.
The FLCA is exempt from federal and other taxes to the extent
provided in the Farm Credit Act.
Statements of Cash Flows: For purposes of reporting cash flow,
cash includes cash on hand.
Fair Value Measurement: The Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) guidance on ‘‘Fair Value Measurements’’ describes
three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value.
Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the
measurement date.
Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either
directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include the following:
• quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
• quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in
markets that are not active so that they are traded less
frequently than exchange-traded instruments, the prices are
not current or principal market information is not released
publicly,
• inputs that are observable such as interest rates and yield
curves, prepayment speeds, credit risks, and default rates, and
• inputs derived principally from or corroborated by observable
market data by correlation or other means.
Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no
market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the
assets or liabilities. These unobservable inputs reflect our own
assumptions about assumptions that market participants would use
in pricing the asset or liability. Level 3 assets and liabilities include
financial instruments whose value is determined using pricing
models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques,
as well as instruments for which the determination of fair value
requires significant management judgment or estimation.

Recently Issued or Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2011, the FASB issued guidance entitled, ‘‘Balance
Sheet — Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities.’’ In
January 2013, the FASB issued clarifying guidance surrounding
the scope of financial instruments covered under this guidance.
The offsetting disclosures are only applied to derivatives, repurchase agreements and securities lending transactions. The
guidance requires an entity to disclose information about offsetting and related arrangements to enable users of its financial
statements to understand the effect of those arrangements on its
financial position. This includes the effect or potential effect of
rights of setoff associated with an entity’s recognized assets and
recognized liabilities. The requirements apply to in scope financial
instruments that are offset in accordance with the rights of offset
set forth in accounting guidance and for those financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement, irrespective of whether they
are offset or not. This guidance is to be applied retroactively for all
comparative periods and is effective for annual and interim
reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The adoption of this guidance will have no impact on our consolidated
financial condition or consolidated results of operations.
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In September 2011, the FASB issued guidance entitled, ‘‘Compensation — Retirement Benefits — Multiemployer Plans.’’ The guidance
is intended to provide more information about an employer’s financial obligations to multiemployer pension and post-employment
benefit plans which should help financial statement users better
understand the financial health of significant plans in which the
employer participates. For non-public entities, the disclosures are
effective for annual reporting periods ending on or after December 15, 2012. The adoption of this guidance did not have any impact
on our consolidated financial condition or consolidated results of
operations, but resulted in additional disclosures in Note 10.
In June 2011, the FASB issued guidance entitled, ‘‘Presentation of
Comprehensive Income.’’ The guidance eliminates the current
option to report other comprehensive income and its components in
the statement of changes in equity. An entity can elect to present
items of net income and other comprehensive income in one continuous statement — referred to as the Statement of Comprehensive
Income — or in two separate, but consecutive, statements. The guidance is intended to improve the comparability, consistency, and
transparency of financial reporting and to increase the prominence
of items reported in other comprehensive income. For non-public
entities, the guidance is effective for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2012, and interim and annual periods thereafter. The
adoption of the guidance did not have any impact on our consolidated financial condition or consolidated results of operations. If, in
future periods, we have other comprehensive income, expanded
financial statement presentation will be required.
In May 2011, FASB issued guidance entitled, ‘‘Fair Value Measurement — Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurements
and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).’’ The guidance results in a consistent

definition of fair value and common requirements for measurement
of and disclosure about fair value between U.S. GAAP and IFRS. The
amendments include the following:
• Application of the highest and best use valuation premise is only
relevant when measuring the fair value of nonfinancial assets.
• An exception to the requirement for measuring fair value when a
reporting entity manages its financial instruments on the basis of
its net exposure, rather than its gross exposure, to market risks
such as interest rate risk and credit risk of counterparties.
• Expansion of the disclosures about fair value measurements.
New disclosures are required about the use of a nonfinancial
asset measured or disclosed at fair value if its use differs from
its highest and best use.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. For non-public
entities, the amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2011. The adoption of this guidance
did not have any impact on our consolidated financial condition or
consolidated results of operations and did not result in additional
disclosures at this time.
In April 2011, the FASB issued guidance entitled, ‘‘A Creditor’s
Determination of Whether a Restructuring Is a Troubled Debt
Restructuring.’’ The guidance provides additional clarification to
creditors for evaluating whether a modification or restructuring of a
receivable is a troubled debt restructuring. The guidance is effective
for non-public entities for annual periods ending on or after
December 15, 2012, including interim periods within those annual
periods. The adoption of this guidance did not have a significant
impact on our consolidated financial condition or consolidated results
of operations and did not result in additional disclosures.

3
LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES
Loans consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):
2012

AS OF DECEMBER 31

2011

2010

AMOUNT

%

AMOUNT

%

AMOUNT

%

$11,298,575

68.4%

$10,014,583

66.8%

$9,140,247

64.9%

2,825,749

17.1%

2,859,528

19.0%

2,689,810

19.1%

919,755

5.6%

736,481

4.9%

849,281

6.0%

1,045,861

6.3%

1,042,501

6.9%

1,055,470

7.5%

Finance leases

321,009

1.9%

281,132

1.9%

300,961

2.1%

Other

115,926

0.7%

76,425

0.5%

53,093

0.4%

Total

$16,526,875

100.0%

$15,010,650

100.0%

$14,088,862

100.0%

Real estate mortgage

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Production and intermediate term

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Agribusiness

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Rural residential real estate

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

The Other category is comprised of communication, energy, and water and waste disposal related loans as well as loans originated
under our Mission Related Investment authority.
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Generally, FCA loan types are defined as:
• Real estate mortgage: long-term real estate loans made to
borrowers typically for farm real estate, refinancing existing
mortgages, or constructing various facilities used in
operations.
• Production and intermediate term: loans made to borrowers
typically for operating funds and equipment.
• Agribusiness: loans made to cooperatives and their
subsidiaries, farm related businesses, and processing and
marketing entities.
• Rural residential real estate: loans made to borrowers for any
rural home purpose.
• Finance leases: lease receivables made under regulatory
authorities.
• Other loans: loans that do not meet the individual definitions
described above.

Our agricultural commodity concentrations at December 31, 2012,
included corn and soybeans (28.2%), other crops (17.9%), cattle
(12.7%), landlords (9.1%), other livestock (6.7%), and rural home (5.9%).
No other single commodity exceeded 5% of loan volume. Our commodity concentrations have not changed materially from prior years.
Our portfolio was concentrated primarily in the following four
states at December 31, 2012: Indiana 25.9%, Ohio 24.4%, Tennessee 20.0%, and Kentucky 15.6%.
While these concentrations represent our maximum potential
credit risk as it relates to recorded loan principal, a substantial
portion of our lending activities are collateralized. This reduces
our exposure to credit loss associated with our lending activities.
We consider credit risk exposure in establishing the allowance for
loan losses.

Portfolio Concentrations

We have concentrations with individual borrowers, within various
agricultural commodities, and within our chartered territory. At
December 31, 2012, volume plus commitments to our ten largest
borrowers totaled an amount equal to 3.4% of total loans and
commitments.

Participations

We may purchase or sell participation interests with other parties
in order to diversify risk, manage loan volume, or comply with FCA
Regulations or General Financing Agreement (GFA) limitations.
The following table presents information regarding participations
purchased and sold (in thousands):

AGRIBANK, FCB

OTHER FARM
CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

NON-FARM
CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

TOTAL

PARTICIPATIONS

PARTICIPATIONS

PARTICIPATIONS

PARTICIPATIONS

PURCHASED

SOLD

PURCHASED

SOLD

PURCHASED

SOLD

PURCHASED

SOLD

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

$—

($695,391)

$163,619

($2,009)

$992,614

($5,348)

$1,156,233

Production and intermediate term

—

—

82,902

(4,334)

103,400

(1,010)

186,302

(5,344)

Agribusiness

—

(6,500)

631,290

(112,076)

123,825

(94)

755,115

(118,670)

Rural residential real estate

—

—

126

—

14,037

(48)

14,163

(48)

Finance leases

—

—

57,645

—

70,943

—

128,588

—

Other

—

—

85,658

—

—

—

85,658

—

$—

($701,891)

$1,021,240

($118,419)

$1,304,819

($6,500)

$2,326,059

($826,810)

Real estate mortgage

($702,748)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Total
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Real estate mortgage

$—

($858,206)

$132,729

($6,948)

$918,781

($5,333)

$1,051,510

Production and intermediate term

—

—

90,831

—

137,629

(1,124)

228,460

($870,487)
(1,124)

Agribusiness

—

(17,226)

523,260

(71,462)

64,488

(100)

587,748

(88,788)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Rural residential real estate

—

—

—

—

15,755

(58)

15,755

(58)

Finance leases

—

—

23,364

—

82,226

—

105,590

—

Other

—

—

21,000

—

14,731

—

35,731

—

$—

($875,432)

$791,184

($78,410)

$1,233,610

($6,615)

$2,024,794

($960,457)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Total

Information in the preceding chart excludes loans entered into under our Mission Related Investment authority.

Credit Quality and Delinquency

One credit quality indicator we utilize is the FCA Uniform Loan
Classification System that categorizes loans into five categories.
The categories are defined as follows:
• Acceptable: loans are expected to be fully collectible and
represent the highest quality,
• Other assets especially mentioned (OAEM): loans are currently
collectible but exhibit some potential weakness,

• Substandard: loans exhibit some serious weakness in
repayment capacity, equity, and/or collateral pledged on
the loan,
• Doubtful: loans exhibit similar weaknesses to substandard
loans; however, doubtful loans have additional weaknesses in
existing factors, conditions, and values that make collection in
full highly questionable, and
• Loss: loans are considered uncollectible.
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The following table summarizes loans and related accrued interest classified under the FCA Uniform Classification System by loan type
(dollars in thousands):
ACCEPTABLE
AMOUNT

SUBSTANDARD/
DOUBTFUL/LOSS

OAEM
%

AMOUNT

%

AMOUNT

TOTAL
%

AMOUNT

%

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

$10,865,566

95.5%

2,657,950
846,171

Rural residential real estate
Finance leases

Real estate mortgage

$156,022

1.4%

$357,205

3.1%

$11,378,793

100.0%

93.0%

83,547

2.9%

91.5%

39,805

4.3%

117,730

4.1%

2,859,227

100.0%

38,498

4.2%

924,474

982,881

93.8%

6,253

0.6%

100.0%

59,195

5.6%

1,048,329

319,966

99.7%

96

—

100.0%

947

0.3%

321,009

100.0%

111,617

96.0%

4,705

4.0%

—

—

116,322

100.0%

$15,784,151

94.9%

$290,428

1.7%

$573,575

3.4%

$16,648,154

100.0%

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Production and
intermediate term

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Agribusiness

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Other

Total loan portfolio
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Real estate mortgage

$9,391,155

Production and
intermediate term

93.0%

$324,075

3.2%

$378,541

3.8%

$10,093,771

100.0%

100.0%

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

2,681,402

92.6%

80,454

2.8%

132,539

4.6%

2,894,395

Agribusiness

653,882

88.3%

67,870

9.2%

18,196

2.5%

739,948

100.0%

Rural residential real estate

977,470

93.5%

7,255

0.7%

60,249

5.8%

1,044,974

100.0%

Finance leases

279,789

99.6%

118

—

1,225

0.4%

281,132

100.0%

71,310

92.9%

4,381

5.7%

1,099

1.4%

76,790

100.0%

$14,055,008

92.9%

$484,153

3.2%

$591,849

3.9%

$15,131,010

100.0%

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Other

Total loan portfolio

The following table provides an aging analysis of past due loans and related accrued interest by loan type (in thousands):
30-89 DAYS
PAST DUE

90 DAYS
OR MORE
PAST DUE

TOTAL
PAST DUE

NOT PAST DUE
OR LESS THAN
30 DAYS
PAST DUE

TOTAL LOANS

90 DAYS
PAST DUE AND
ACCRUING

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Real estate mortgage

$56,804

$59,662

$116,466

$11,262,327

$11,378,793

$7,830

12,393

15,921

28,314

2,830,913

2,859,227

116

1,561

36

1,597

922,877

924,474

—

18,203

10,645

28,848

1,019,481

1,048,329

48

172

318

490

320,519

321,009

—

—

—

—

116,322

116,322

—

$89,133

$86,582

$175,715

$16,472,439

$16,648,154

$7,994

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Production and intermediate term

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Agribusiness

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Rural residential real estate

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Finance leases

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Other

Total
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Real estate mortgage

$64,646

$62,991

$127,637

$9,966,134

$10,093,771

$306

17,478

28,121

45,599

2,848,796

2,894,395

408

386

205

591

739,357

739,948

—

23,028

12,820

35,848

1,009,126

1,044,974

—

80

622

702

280,430

281,132

—

—

—

—

76,790

76,790

—

$105,618

$104,759

$210,377

$14,920,633

$15,131,010

$714

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Production and intermediate term

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Agribusiness

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Rural residential real estate

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Finance leases

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Other

Total
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Risk Loans

A loan is considered a risk loan if it is probable that we will be unable to collect all principal and interest according to the loan
agreement. The following table presents risk loan information
(in thousands).
AS OF DECEMBER 31

2012

2011

2010

Non-accrual loans:

.........................................................................................................................

The reduction in non-accrual volume resulted from resolution of
many loans through negotiations or litigation. In addition, many
customers whose loans were restructured over 12 months ago,
performed under the terms of the restructure long enough to
meet our requirements to reinstate their loans to accrual status.
Accruing loans 90 days or more past due and related accrued
interest by loan type were as follows (in thousands):

$121,618

$144,746

$126,932

114,041

141,740

148,959

235,659

286,486

275,891

10,358

10,222

10,150

.........................................................................................................................

7,994

714

1,318

.........................................................................................................................

Total risk loans

$254,011

$297,422

$287,359

Volume with specific reserves

$34,232

$51,871

$72,801

219,779

245,551

214,558

$254,011

$297,422

$287,359

$8,863

$14,317

$20,418

Current

.........................................................................................................................

Past due

Total non-accrual loans

.........................................................................................................................

Accruing restructured loans

.........................................................................................................................

Accruing loans 90 days or more past due

AS OF DECEMBER 31

2012

2011

2010

Accruing loans 90 days or more past due:

.........................................................................................................................

$7,830

$306

$758

Production and intermediate term

116

408

560

Rural residential real estate

48

—

—

$7,994

$714

$1,318

Real estate mortgage

Total accruing loans 90 days or more past due

.........................................................................................................................

Volume without specific reserves
Total risk loans
Total specific reserves
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

Income on accrual risk loans

2012

2011

2010

$847

$829

$688

.........................................................................................................................

Income on non-accrual loans
Total income on risk loans

Average recorded investment

11,191

9,715

4,711

$12,038

$10,544

$5,399

$278,065

$312,680

$262,634

The increase in accruing loans 90 days or more past due was primarily due to an increase in delinquency on a few large real estate
loans. All loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing interest
were adequately secured and in the process of collection and, as
such, were eligible to remain in accruing status.

Non-accrual loans by loan type were as follows (in thousands):
AS OF DECEMBER 31

2012

2011

2010

Non-accrual loans:

.........................................................................................................................

Real estate mortgage

$154,708

$180,813

$157,527

45,378

64,585

69,928

388

238

9,438

34,794

38,982

31,097

391

771

7,901

—

1,097

—

$235,659

$286,486

$275,891

.........................................................................................................................

Production and intermediate term

.........................................................................................................................

Agribusiness

.........................................................................................................................

Rural residential real estate

.........................................................................................................................

Finance leases

.........................................................................................................................

Other

Total non-accrual loans
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Impaired loans are considered to be all risk loans and any other loans individually assessed for impairment. The following table provides additional impaired loan information (in thousands):
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2012

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012
RECORDED
INVESTMENT1

UNPAID
PRINCIPAL
BALANCE2

RELATED
ALLOWANCE

AVERAGE
IMPAIRED
LOANS

INTEREST
INCOME
RECOGNIZED

Impaired loans with a related allowance for credit losses:

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

$17,823

$27,544

$3,425

$18,868

$—

12,494

21,455

4,951

15,649

—

—

—

—

—

—

3,915

6,324

487

4,125

—

Finance leases

—

—

—

—

—

Other

—

—

—

—

—

$34,232

$55,323

$8,863

$38,642

$—

Real estate mortgage

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Production and intermediate term

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Agribusiness

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Rural residential real estate

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Total
Impaired loans with no related allowance for credit losses:

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Real estate mortgage

$154,603

$170,396

$—

$163,576

$7,811

33,294

53,918

—

41,678

2,814

388

398

—

158

5

31,103

36,672

—

32,766

1,408

391

391

—

701

—

—

—

—

544

—

$219,779

$261,775

$—

$239,423

$12,038

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Production and intermediate term

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Agribusiness

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Rural residential real estate

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Finance leases

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Other

Total
Total impaired loans:

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Real estate mortgage

$172,426

$197,940

$3,425

$182,444

$7,811

45,788

75,373

4,951

57,327

2,814

388

398

—

158

5

35,018

42,996

487

36,891

1,408

391

391

—

701

—

—

—

—

544

—

$254,011

$317,098

$8,863

$278,065

$12,038

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Production and intermediate term

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Agribusiness

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Rural residential real estate

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Finance leases

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Other

Total
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FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2011

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011
RECORDED
INVESTMENT1

UNPAID
PRINCIPAL
BALANCE2

AVERAGE
IMPAIRED
LOANS

RELATED
ALLOWANCE

INTEREST
INCOME
RECOGNIZED

Impaired loans with a related allowance for credit losses:

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Real estate mortgage

$17,332

$23,763

$5,234

$17,595

$—

29,678

43,561

8,078

32,257

—

724

744

404

4,880

—

4,137

5,631

601

3,948

—

Finance leases

—

—

—

—

—

Other

—

—

—

—

—

$51,871

$73,699

$14,317

$58,680

$—

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Production and intermediate term

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Agribusiness

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Rural residential real estate

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Total
Impaired loans with no related allowance for credit losses:

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Real estate mortgage

$173,960

$196,216

$—

$176,078

$7,233

36,474

48,114

—

39,139

1,854

237

474

—

2,946

—

35,297

43,165

—

32,134

965

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Production and intermediate term

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Agribusiness

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Rural residential real estate

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Finance leases

771

771

—

3,610

—

1,097

8,980

—

93

492

$247,836

$297,720

$—

$254,000

$10,544

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Other

Total
Total impaired loans:

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Real estate mortgage

$191,292

$219,979

$5,234

$193,673

$7,233

66,152

91,675

8,078

71,396

1,854

961

1,218

404

7,826

—

39,434

48,796

601

36,082

965

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Production and intermediate term

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Agribusiness

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Rural residential real estate

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Finance leases

771

771

—

3,610

—

1,097

8,980

—

93

492

$299,707

$371,419

$14,317

$312,680

$10,544

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Other

Total
1

The recorded investment in the receivable is the face amount increased or decreased by applicable accrued interest and unamortized premium, discount, finance charges, and acquisition
costs and may also reflect a previous direct charge-off of the investment.

2

Unpaid principal balance represents the contractual principal balance of the loan.

We did not have any material commitments to lend additional money to borrowers whose loans were at risk at December 31, 2012.

Troubled Debt Restructurings

Included within our loans are troubled debt restructurings, also known as formally restructured. These loans have been modified by
granting a concession in order to maximize the collection of amounts due when a borrower is experiencing financial difficulties. Loans
classified as troubled debt restructurings are considered risk loans. All risk loans are analyzed within our allowance for loan losses.
The following table presents information regarding troubled debt restructurings that occurred during the year ended December 31
(in thousands):
2012

2011

PRE-MODIFICATION
OUTSTANDING
RECORDED INVESTMENT

POST-MODIFICATION
OUTSTANDING
RECORDED INVESTMENT

PRE-MODIFICATION
OUTSTANDING
RECORDED INVESTMENT

POST-MODIFICATION
OUTSTANDING
RECORDED INVESTMENT

$8,734

$8,832

$6,736

$6,802

Production and intermediate term

2,826

2,700

4,605

4,527

Rural residential real estate

1,590

1,472

1,120

1,119

$13,150

$13,004

$12,461

$12,448

Real estate mortgage

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Total

Pre-modification represents the recorded investment just prior to restructuring and post-modification represents the recorded investment immediately following the restructuring. The recorded investment is the face amount of the receivable increased or decreased by
applicable accrued interest and unamortized premium, discount, finance charges, and acquisition costs and may also reflect a previous
direct charge-off of the investment.
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The following table presents troubled debt restructurings that
defaulted during the years ended December 31 in which the modification date was within 12 months of the beginning of the
respective reporting period (in thousands):
Real estate mortgage

2012

2011

$2,372

$4,035

28

1,926

508

715

$2,908

$6,676

Allowance for Loan Losses

A summary of the changes in the allowance for loan losses follows
(in thousands):

Balance at beginning of year

(10,416)

7,006

2,938

Loan charge-offs

(28,080)

(41,643)

(36,688)

Balance at end of year

$60,650

$80,734

$125,787

Loan recoveries

Troubled debt restructurings outstanding at December 31, 2012
totaled $27.5 million, of which $17.1 million were in non-accrual
status compared to $22.5 million at December 31, 2011 of which
$12.3 million were in non-accrual status. There were no additional
commitments to lend to borrowers whose loans have been modified in a troubled debt restructuring at December 31, 2012.

95,084

2,791

.........................................................................................................................

Total

2010

$64,453

5,205

Provision for (reversal of) loan losses

Rural residential real estate

2011

$125,787

.........................................................................................................................

.........................................................................................................................

Production and intermediate term

2012

$80,734

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................

The decrease in allowance for loan losses was primarily related to
additional consideration of customer level collateral reducing loss
given default expectations as well as improved credit quality offset by increased volume.

A summary of changes in the allowance for loan losses and period end recorded investments in loans by loan type follows
(in thousands):
REAL ESTATE
MORTGAGE

PRODUCTION
AND
INTERMEDIATE
TERM

AGRIBUSINESS

RURAL
RESIDENTIAL
REAL ESTATE

FINANCE
LEASES

OTHER

TOTAL

Allowance for loan losses:

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Balance at December 31, 2011

$36,362

$32,287

$7,653

$3,721

$578

$133

4,623

(11,434)

2,054

5,750

90

1,708

$80,734
2,791

2,181

2,836

1

187

—

—

5,205

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Provision for (reversal of) loan losses

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Loan recoveries

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Loan charge-offs

(11,922)

(11,670)

(84)

(4,394)

—

(10)

(28,080)

Balance at December 31, 2012

$31,244

$12,019

$9,624

$5,264

$668

$1,831

$60,650

Ending balance: individually evaluated
for impairment

$3,425

$4,951

$—

$487

$—

$—

$8,863

Ending balance: collectively evaluated
for impairment

$27,819

$7,068

$9,624

$4,777

$668

$1,831

$51,787

Recorded investments in loans outstanding:

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

$11,378,793

$2,859,227

$924,474

$1,048,329

$321,009

$116,322

$16,648,154

Ending balance: individually evaluated
for impairment

$172,426

$45,788

$388

$35,018

$391

$—

$254,011

Ending balance: collectively evaluated
for impairment

$11,206,367

$2,813,439

$924,086

$1,013,311

$320,618

$116,322

$16,394,143

Ending balance at December 31, 2012

Allowance for loan losses:

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Balance at December 31, 2010

$65,471

$34,514

$15,491

$7,620

$2,591

$100

$125,787

(Reversal of) provision for loan losses

(16,762)

2,607

(2,617)

444

(2,013)

7,925

(10,416)

4,717

1,292

800

197

—

—

7,006

Loan charge-offs

(17,064)

(6,126)

(6,021)

(4,540)

—

(7,892)

(41,643)

Balance at December 31, 2011

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Loan recoveries

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

$36,362

$32,287

$7,653

$3,721

$578

$133

$80,734

Ending balance: individually evaluated
for impairment

$5,234

$8,078

$404

$601

$—

$—

$14,317

Ending balance: collectively evaluated
for impairment

$31,128

$24,209

$7,249

$3,120

$578

$133

$66,417

Recorded investments in loans outstanding:

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Ending balance at December 31, 2011

$10,093,771

$2,894,395

$739,948

$1,044,974

$281,132

$76,790

$15,131,010

Ending balance: individually evaluated
for impairment

$191,292

$66,152

$961

$39,434

$771

$1,097

$299,707

Ending balance: collectively evaluated
for impairment

$9,902,479

$2,828,243

$738,987

$1,005,540

$280,361

$75,693

$14,831,303
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5

INVESTMENT IN AGRIBANK

INVESTMENT SECURITIES
AND OTHER EARNING ASSETS

At December 31, 2012, we were required by AgriBank to maintain
an investment equal to 2.5% of the average quarterly balance of
our note payable to AgriBank plus an additional 1.0% on growth
that exceeded a targeted rate.
At December 31, 2012, we were also required by AgriBank to maintain an investment equal to 8.0% of the quarter end balance of the
participation interests in real estate loans sold to AgriBank under
the asset pool program.

We held investment securities of $1.5 billion, $1.4 billion, and
$1.3 billion at December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. Our
investment securities consisted of:
• securities containing loans guaranteed by the Small Business
Administration (SBA),
• investment securities made up of Farm Services
Administration securities (FSA), and
• securities issued by the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA).

The balance of our investment in AgriBank, all required stock, was
$440.9 million, $422.1 million, and $416.7 million at December 31,
2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.

The securities have been classified as held-to-maturity. The investment
portfolio is evaluated for other-than-temporary impairment. To date,
we have not recognized any impairment on our investment portfolio.

The following table presents further information on investment securities (dollars in thousands):
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

SBA

WEIGHTED AVERAGE YIELD

AMORTIZED COST

UNREALIZED GAINS

UNREALIZED LOSSES

FAIR VALUE

2.0%

$560,676

$8,411

$5,760

$563,327

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

FSA

4.6%

86,056

2,307

207

88,156

USDA

2.9%

804,145

1,101

22,448

782,798

2.6%

$1,450,877

$11,819

$28,415

$1,434,281

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Total
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011

WEIGHTED AVERAGE YIELD

AMORTIZED COST

UNREALIZED GAINS

UNREALIZED LOSSES

FAIR VALUE

SBA

2.1%

$480,183

$7,824

$4,484

$483,523

FSA

4.3%

100,033

2,790

424

102,399

USDA

2.7%

830,687

1,007

27,382

804,312

2.6%

$1,410,903

$11,621

$32,290

$1,390,234

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Total
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010

WEIGHTED AVERAGE YIELD

AMORTIZED COST

UNREALIZED GAINS

UNREALIZED LOSSES

FAIR VALUE

SBA

2.2%

$407,234

$6,944

$3,053

$411,125

FSA

5.1%

103,555

2,942

225

106,272

USDA

2.4%

753,196

710

26,921

726,985

2.6%

$1,263,985

$10,596

$30,199

$1,244,382

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Total

Investment income is recorded in ‘‘Interest income’’ on the Consolidated Statements of Income and totaled $37.3 million, $34.4 million,
and $30.3 million in 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.
The following table presents contractual maturities of our investment securities (in thousands):
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

Less than one year

AMORTIZED COST

$344

A summary of investments in an unrealized loss position
presented by the length of time that the investments have been in
continuous unrealized loss position follows (in thousands):
LESS THAN 12 MONTHS
FAIR VALUE

FAIR VALUE

UNREALIZED
LOSSES

SBA

$99,986

$2,758

$144,376

$3,002

FSA

—

—

9,159

207

67,686

4,104

605,070

18,344

$167,672

$6,862

$758,605

$21,553

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................

.........................................................................................................................

USDA

.........................................................................................................................

Total

One to five years

53,031

Five to ten years

231,104

GREATER THAN 12 MONTHS

UNREALIZED
LOSSES

.........................................................................................................................

More than ten years
Total

1,166,398

$1,450,877

Expected maturities differ from contractual maturities because
borrowers may have the right to prepay obligations.

Unrealized losses associated with investment securities are not
considered to be other-than-temporary due to the 100% guarantee
of the principal by the U.S government. However, the premiums
paid to purchase the investment are not guaranteed and are amortized over the weighted average maturity of each loan as a
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reduction to interest income. Repayment of principal is assessed
at least quarterly, and any remaining unamortized premium is
taken as a reduction to interest income if principal repayment is
unlikely, or when a demand for payment is made for the guarantee. At December 31, 2012, most of the $28.4 million unrealized
loss represents unamortized premium.

In September of 2012 we launched a partnership with Farm Credit
Leasing. Farm Credit Leasing is a System entity that specializes
in leasing products and provides industry expertise. Leases
originated are maintained on the books of Farm Credit Leasing
and we purchase a 50% interest in the asset.

Other earning assets result from successor-in-interest contracts
from our involvement with the federal government’s tobacco buyout program. The volume was $144.2 million, $210.9 million, and
$272.0 million at December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.
These amounts include both principal and interest income receivable. We evaluate these assets for impairment. These assets are
100% guaranteed by the U.S. government and even in light of the
downgrade in 2011, no evidence exists that would indicate an
impairment of this portfolio is warranted. We discontinued the
purchase of additional contracts during 2011.

7

6
PREMISES, EQUIPMENT AND ASSETS HELD FOR LEASE
Premises and equipment consisted of the following (in thousands):
2012

2011

2010

$60,722

$49,369

$48,716

Furniture and equipment

21,263

20,395

19,347

Subtotal

81,985

69,764

68,063

Less: accumulated depreciation

(39,605)

(36,913)

(34,053)

Total

$42,380

$32,851

$34,010

AS OF DECEMBER 31

Land, buildings, and improvements

.........................................................................................................................

.........................................................................................................................

Through our leasing portfolio, we hold the lessor’s interest in
equipment and facility assets. The following table provides a summary of our net operating lease income and property held for
lease by major category (in thousands):
2012

2011

.........................................................................................................................

$11,483

$11,674

$11,580

.........................................................................................................................

AS OF DECEMBER 31:

.........................................................................................................................

Farm equipment

$12,168

$379,760

$344,675

450,237

13,433

15,906

.........................................................................................................................

Facilities

462,405

393,193

360,581

Less: accumulated depreciation

(139,340)

(111,547)

(102,206)

Total

$323,065

$281,646

$258,375

Subtotal

.........................................................................................................................

The following is a schedule of expected future minimum payments on operating leases as of December 31, 2012 (in thousands):
FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31

2013

$62,485

.........................................................................................................................

2014

56,769

2015

47,422

.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................

2016

36,468

2017

20,204

.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................

Subsequent years

Total minimum future payments
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Our note payable to AgriBank represents borrowings, in the form
of a line of credit, to fund our loan portfolio. The line of credit is
governed by a GFA and our assets serve as collateral. The total line
of credit was $16.7 billion, $16.1 billion, and $15.0 billion at December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively, and the outstanding
principal under the line of credit was $15.8 billion, $14.6 billion,
and $13.8 billion at December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.
The interest rate is adjusted monthly and was 2.0%, 2.5%, and
2.9% at December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. The
maturity date is April 30, 2013, for our note payable, at which time
the note will be renegotiated.
The GFA provides for limitations on our ability to borrow funds
based on specified factors or formulas relating primarily to outstanding balances, credit quality, and financial condition. At
December 31, 2012, and throughout the year, we were within the
specified limitations and in compliance with all debt covenants.

8

2010

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31:

Operating lease income

NOTE PAYABLE TO AGRIBANK

18,880

$242,228

MEMBERS’ EQUITY
Capitalization Requirements

In accordance with the Farm Credit Act, each borrower is required
to invest in us as a condition of obtaining a loan. As authorized by
the Agricultural Credit Act and our capital bylaws, our Board of
Directors has adopted a capital plan that establishes a stock purchase requirement for obtaining a loan of 2.0% of the customer’s
total loan(s) or one thousand dollars, whichever is less. The stock
purchase requirement of obtaining a lease is one share of Class D
common stock for those eligible to hold such stock, or one participation certificate for those not eligible to hold such stock. In
addition, the purchase of one participation certificate is required
of all customers who purchase financial services and are not a
stockholder. The Board of Directors may increase the amount of
required investment to the extent authorized in the capital
bylaws. The borrower acquires ownership of the capital stock at
the time the loan or lease is made. The aggregate par value of the
stock is added to the principal amount of the related obligation.
We retain a first lien on the stock or participation certificates
owned by customers.

Regulatory Capitalization Requirements

Under capital adequacy regulations, we are required to maintain a
permanent capital ratio of at least 7.0%, a total surplus ratio of at
least 7.0%, and a core surplus ratio of at least 3.5%. The calculation of these ratios in accordance with FCA Regulations is
discussed as follows:
• The permanent capital ratio is average at-risk capital divided by
average risk-adjusted assets. At December 31, 2012, our ratio
was 15.5%.
• The total surplus ratio is average unallocated surplus less any
deductions made in the computation of permanent capital
divided by average risk-adjusted assets. At December 31, 2012,
our ratio was 15.0%.
• The core surplus ratio is average unallocated surplus less any
deductions made in the computation of total surplus and less
any excess stock investment in AgriBank divided by average
risk-adjusted assets. At December 31, 2012, our ratio was 15.0%.
We have an agreement with AgriBank which defines how our
investment in AgriBank is allocated in calculating regulatory capital ratios. According to the agreement, we include in our ratios all
of our investment in AgriBank that is in excess of the required
amount. We no longer have any excess stock at December 31, 2012,
2011, or 2010, respectively.

paid by each holder over the prior two years bears to the total
interest paid by all holders of stock and participation certificates.
In the event of impairment, losses will be absorbed pro rata by
impairment based on the following order of priority:
• first, to holders of Class D common stock and Class B
participation certificates and
• second, to holders of Class C preferred stock.
All classes of stock are transferable to other customers who are
eligible to hold such class as long as we meet the regulatory
minimum capital requirements.

Patronage Distributions

The FCA Regulations prohibit patronage distributions to the extent
they would reduce our permanent capital ratio below the minimum
permanent capital adequacy standards. We do not foresee any
events that would result in this prohibition in 2013. However, we do
not have a patronage program to make such distributions.
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Description of Equities

The following table presents information regarding classes and
number of shares of stock and participation certificates outstanding as of December 31, 2012. All shares and participation certificates
were with a $5.00 par value.
SHARES OUTSTANDING

Class D common stock (at-risk)

13,823,687

.........................................................................................................................

Class B participation certificates (at-risk)

3,084,513

INCOME TAXES
Provision for Income Taxes

Our provision for income taxes follows (dollars in thousands):
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2012

2011

2010

Current:

.........................................................................................................................

Federal

$890

($498)

429

421

466

1,319

(77)

6,163

$5,697

.........................................................................................................................

Under our bylaws, we are also authorized to issue Class C preferred stock. This stock is at-risk and nonvoting with a $5.00 par
value per share. Currently, no stock of this class has been issued.

State

Total current
Deferred:

.........................................................................................................................

Federal

Only holders of Class D common stock have voting rights. Our
bylaws do not prohibit us from paying dividends on any classes of
stock. However, no dividends have been declared during the last
three years.
Our bylaws generally permit stock and participation certificates to
be retired at the discretion of our Board of Directors and in accordance with our capitalization plans, provided prescribed capital
standards have been met. At December 31, 2012, we exceeded the
prescribed standards. We do not anticipate any significant changes
in capital that would affect the normal retirement of stock.
In the event of our liquidation or dissolution, according to our
bylaws, any remaining assets after payment or retirement of all
liabilities will be distributed in the following order of priority:
• first, to holders of Class C preferred stock and
• second, to holders of Class D common stock and Class B
participation certificates in proportion that the aggregate interest

18,217

13,055

1,180

1,082

436

19,397

14,137

7,765

$20,716

$14,060

$13,928

6.7%

4.8%

6.1%

7,329

.........................................................................................................................

State

Total deferred
Provision for income taxes
Effective tax rate

The following table quantifies the differences between the provision for income taxes and income taxes at the statutory rates
(in thousands):
2012

2011

2010

$105,161

$99,501

$77,479

Impact of graduated rates

553

381

382

State tax, net

898

614

615

(86,375)

(86,533)

(64,483)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

Federal tax at statutory rate (34%)

.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................

Effect of non-taxable entity

.........................................................................................................................

Other

Provision for income taxes

479

97

(65)

$20,716

$14,060

$13,928
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Deferred Income Taxes

Tax laws require certain items to be included in our tax returns at
different times than the items are reflected on our Consolidated
Statements of Income. Some of these items are temporary differences that will reverse over time. We record the tax effect of
temporary differences as deferred tax assets and liabilities netted
on our Consolidated Statements of Condition. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities were composed of the following (in thousands):
AS OF DECEMBER 31

Allowance for loan losses

2012

2011

2010

$3,565

$8,065

$8,084
420

.........................................................................................................................

357

388

Previously taxed non-accrual interest

1,372

1,169

724

Net operating loss carryforward

3,576

7,103

5,035

(77,877)

Postretirement benefit accrual

.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................

(107,350)

(94,892)

AgriBank, FCB 2002 allocated stock

(2,915)

(2,917)

(2,913)

Accrued pension asset

(1,533)

(1,569)

(1,968)

Leasing related, net

.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................

Other assets

Net deferred tax liabilities
Gross deferred tax assets
Gross deferred tax liabilities

1,170

292

271

($101,758)

($82,361)

($68,224)

$10,040

$17,017

$14,534

($111,798)

($99,378)

($82,758)

A valuation allowance for the deferred tax assets was not necessary at December 31, 2012, 2011, or 2010.
We have not provided for deferred income taxes on approximately $188.8 million of patronage allocations received from
AgriBank prior to 1993. Such allocations, distributed in the form of
stock, are subject to tax only upon conversion to cash. Our intent
is to permanently maintain this investment in AgriBank. Additionally, we have not provided deferred income taxes on
accumulated FLCA earnings of $2.0 billion as it is our intent to
permanently maintain this equity in the FLCA or to distribute the
earnings to members in a manner that results in no additional tax
liability to us.
Our income tax returns are subject to review by various U.S. taxing authorities. We record accruals for items that we believe may
be challenged by these taxing authorities. However, we had no
uncertain income tax positions at December 31, 2012. In addition,
we believe we are no longer subject to income tax examinations
for years prior to 2009.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Pension and Post-Employment Benefit Plans

Complete financial information for the pension and postemployment benefit plans may be found in the Combined AgriBank,
FCB and Affiliated Associations 2012 Annual Report (District financial statements).
The Farm Credit Foundations Coordinating and Trust Committees
provide oversight of the District benefit plans. The governance
committees are either elected or appointed representatives
(senior leadership and/or Board of Director members) from the
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participating organizations. The Coordinating Committee is
responsible for decisions regarding benefits at the direction of the
participating employers. The Trust Committee is responsible for
fiduciary and plan administrative functions.
Pension Plan: Certain employees participate in the AgriBank District
Retirement Plan, a District-wide multi-employer defined benefit
retirement plan. The Department of Labor has determined the plan to
be a governmental plan; therefore, the plan is not subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended (ERISA). As the plan is not subject to ERISA, the plan’s benefits are not insured by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation.
Accordingly, the amount of accumulated benefits that participants
would receive in the event of the plan’s termination is contingent on
the sufficiency of the plan’s net assets to provide benefits at that
time. This Plan is noncontributory and covers eligible District
employees. The assets, liabilities, and costs of the plan are not segregated by participating entities. As such, plan assets are available for
any of the participating employers’ retirees at any point in time. Additionally, if a participating employer stops contributing to the plan, the
unfunded obligations of the plan may be borne by the remaining participating employers. Further, if we choose to stop participating in the
plan, we may be required to pay an amount based on the underfunded
status of the plan, referred to as a withdrawal liability. Because of the
multi-employer nature of the plan, any individual employer is not
able to unilaterally change the provisions of the plan. If an employee
moves to another employer within the same plan, the employee benefits under the plan transfer. Benefits are based on salary and years of
service. There is no collective bargaining agreement in place as part
of this plan.
As disclosed in the District financial statements, the defined benefit
pension plan reflects an unfunded liability totaling $442.6 million
at December 31, 2012. The pension benefits funding status reflects
the net of the fair value of the plan assets and the projected benefit
obligation at the date of these consolidated financial statements.
The projected benefit obligation is the actuarial present value of all
benefits attributed by the pension benefit formula to employee service rendered prior to the measurement date based on assumed
future compensation levels. The projected benefit obligation of the
District-wide plan was $1.1 billion, $934.8 million, and $834.2 million at December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. The fair
value of the plan assets was $640.1 million, $557.6 million, and
$573.0 million at December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.
The amount of the pension benefits and funding status is subject to
many variables including performance of plan assets and interest
rate levels. Therefore, changes in assumptions could significantly
affect these estimates.
Costs are determined for each individual employer based on costs
directly related to their current employees as well as an allocation
of the remaining costs based proportionately on the estimated projected liability of the employer under this plan. We recognize our
proportional share of expense and contribute a proportional share
of funding. Total plan expense for participating employers was
$52.7 million, $44.0 million, and $37.0 million for 2012, 2011, and
2010, respectively. Our allocated share of plan expenses included in
‘‘Salaries and employee benefits’’ on the Consolidated Statements of
Income was $10.3 million, $8.7 million, and $7.5 million for 2012,
2011, and 2010, respectively. Participating employers contributed
$51.3 million, $27.9 million, and $25.3 million to the plan in 2012,
2011, and 2010, respectively. Our allocated share of these pension
contributions was $10.1 million, $5.6 million, and $5.2 million for

2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. While the plan is a governmental
plan and is not subject to minimum funding requirements, the
employers contribute amounts necessary on an actuarial basis to
provide the plan with sufficient assets to meet the benefits to be
paid to participants. The amount of the total District employer contributions expected to be paid into the pension plans during 2013 is
$57.2 million. Our allocated share of these pension contributions is
expected to be $11.2 million. The amount ultimately to be contributed and the amount ultimately recognized as expense as well as
the timing of those contributions and expenses, are subject to many
variables including performance of plan assets and interest rate
levels. These variables could result in actual contributions and
expenses being greater than or less than the amounts reflected in
the District financial statements.
Retiree Medical Plans: District employers also provide certain health
insurance benefits to eligible retired employees according to the
terms of the benefit plan. The anticipated costs of these benefits
are accrued during the period of the employee’s active status. We
provide this benefit to certain employees based on eligible criteria.
As of 1996, no additional employees met the eligibility requirements. As a result, we incur minimal costs associated with the
retiree medical plans. Postretirement benefits income included in
‘‘Salaries and employee benefits’’ on the Consolidated Statements of
Income was $216 thousand, $212 thousand, and $167 thousand for
2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. Our cash contributions were
equal to the benefits paid and were $1.5 million for each 2012, 2011,
and 2010.
Nonqualified Retirement Plan: We also participate in a District-wide
non-qualified defined benefit Pension Restoration Plan. This plan
restores retirement benefits to certain highly compensated eligible
employees that would have been provided under the qualified plan
if such benefits were not above the Internal Revenue Code compensation or other limits. Costs are determined for each individual
employer based on costs directly related to their current employees.
Total Pension Restoration Plan expense for participating employers
was $2.4 million, $2.5 million, and $1.7 million for 2012, 2011, and
2010, respectively. Our allocated share of plan expenses included in
‘‘Salaries and employee benefits’’ on the Consolidated Statements of
Income was $321 thousand, $260 thousand, and $247 thousand for
2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. The Pension Restoration Plan is
unfunded and we make annual contributions to fund benefits paid
to our retirees covered by the plan. Our cash contributions were
$1.0 million for 2012 and $514 thousand for each 2011 and 2010.

Retirement Savings Plan

We also participate in a defined contribution retirement savings
plan. For employees hired before January 1, 2007, employee contributions are matched dollar for dollar up to 2% and 50 cents on the
dollar on the next 4% on both pre-tax and post-tax contributions.
The maximum employer match is 4%. For employees hired after
December 31, 2006, we contribute 3% of the employee’s compensation and will match employee contributions dollar for dollar up
to a maximum of 6% on both pre-tax and post-tax contributions.
The maximum employer contribution is 9%. Employer contribution expenses are included in ‘‘Salaries and employee benefits’’ on
the Consolidated Statements of Income under the plan were
$3.8 million, $3.0 million, and $2.5 million in 2012, 2011, and 2010,
respectively. These expenses are equal to our cash contributions
for each year.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In the ordinary course of business, we may enter into loan transactions with our officers, directors, their immediate family
members, and other organizations with which such persons may
be associated. Such transactions are subject to special approval
requirements contained in FCA Regulations and are made on the
same terms, including interest rates, amortization schedules, and
collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons. In our opinion, none of these loans
outstanding at December 31, 2012 involved more than a normal
risk of collectability.
The following table represents information on loans and leases to
related parties (in thousands):
2012

2011

2010

AS OF DECEMBER 31:

.........................................................................................................................

Total related party loans and leases

$17,473

$13,730

$27,815

.........................................................................................................................

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31:

.........................................................................................................................

Advances to related parties

$6,624

$5,373

$15,060

4,991

4,655

13,279

.........................................................................................................................

Repayments by related parties

The composition of related parties can be different each year end
primarily due to changes in the make-up of our Board of Directors.
Advances and repayments to related parties at the end of each
year are included in the preceding chart.
Additional transactions other than loans in the ordinary course of
business involving directors and senior officers include our dealer
credit program which provides financing for new and used equipment for an equipment dealership that is co-owned by Director
Brandon Robbins. All dealerships in the dealer credit program are
offered the same terms and conditions.
We purchase various services from AgriBank including financial
and retail systems, support, and reporting, technology services,
and insurance services. The total cost of services we purchased
from AgriBank was $5.3 million, $5.1 million, and $4.8 million in
2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. We purchase benefit, human
resource information systems, payroll, and workforce management services from Foundations. Foundations was operated as a
part of AgriBank prior to January 1, 2012 when it formed a System
service corporation. The System entities using Foundations’ services contributed an investment into the service corporation in
January 2012. Our investment was $113 thousand at December 31,
2012. The total cost of services purchased from Foundations was
$530 thousand in 2012.
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CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In the normal course of business, we have various contingent liabilities and commitments outstanding which may not be reflected
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. We do not
anticipate any material losses because of these contingencies or
commitments.

The FASB guidance on ‘‘Fair Value Measurement’’ defines fair
value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The guidance also
establishes a fair value hierarchy, with three levels of inputs that
may be used to measure fair value. Refer to Note 2 for a more complete description of the three input levels.

From time to time, we may be named as a defendant in certain lawsuits or legal actions in the normal course of business. At the date of
these consolidated financial statements, we were not aware of any
such actions that would have a material impact on our financial
condition. However, such actions could arise in the future.
We have commitments to extend credit and letters of credit to
satisfy the financing needs of our borrowers. These financial
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk
not recognized in the financial statements. Commitments to
extend credit are agreements to lend to a borrower as long as
there is not a violation of any condition established in the loan
contract. Standby letters of credit are agreements to pay a beneficiary if there is a default on a contractual arrangement. At
December 31, 2012, we had commitments to extend credit and
unexercised commitments related to standby letters of credit of
$2.4 billion. Additionally, we had $19.0 million of issued standby
letters of credit as of December 31, 2012.

Non-Recurring Basis

We do not have any assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis at December 31, 2012, 2011, or 2010. We may be
required, from time to time, to measure certain assets at fair value
on a non-recurring basis. Information on assets measured at fair
value on a non-recurring basis follows (in thousands):
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT USING

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

$—

$26,638

$—

—

—

14,924

14,924

(9,945)

LEVEL 1

LEVEL 2

LEVEL 3

TOTAL
FAIR VALUE

TOTAL
GAINS
(LOSSES)

$—

$39,432

$—

$39,432

$6,101

—

—

31,521

31,521

(3,227)

LEVEL 1

LEVEL 2

LEVEL 3

TOTAL
FAIR VALUE

TOTAL
GAINS
(LOSSES)

$—

$56,111

$—

$56,111

$4,054

—

—

24,863

24,863

(401)

$26,638 ($22,626)

.........................................................................................................................

Other property owned

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011

Loans

Commitments to extend credit and letters of credit generally have
fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and we may
require payment of a fee. If commitments to extend credit and letters of credit remain unfulfilled or have not expired, they may
have credit risk not recognized in the financial statements. Many
of the commitments to extend credit and letters of credit will
expire without being fully drawn upon. Therefore, the total commitments do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.
Certain letters of credit may have recourse provisions that would
enable us to recover from third parties amounts paid under guarantees, thereby limiting our maximum potential exposure. The
credit risk involved in issuing these financial instruments is
essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to borrowers and we apply the same credit policies.

TOTAL
GAINS
(LOSSES)

LEVEL 2

Loans

LEVEL 3

TOTAL
FAIR
VALUE

LEVEL 1

.........................................................................................................................

Other property owned

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010

Loans

.........................................................................................................................

Other property owned

Valuation Techniques

Loans: Represents the carrying amount and related write-downs
of loans which were evaluated for individual impairment based on
the appraised value of the underlying collateral. When the value
of the collateral, less estimated costs to sell, is less than the principal balance of the loan, a specific reserve is established. Costs to
sell represent transaction costs and are not included as a component of the asset’s fair value.
Other property owned: Represents the fair value and related losses
of foreclosed assets that were measured at fair value based on the
collateral value, which is generally determined using appraisals or
other indications based on sales of similar properties. Costs to sell
represent transaction costs and are not included as a component
of the asset’s fair value.
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statutory rights of System borrowers, could render our portfolio
unmarketable outside the System.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Quoted market prices are generally not available for our financial
instruments. Accordingly, we base fair values on:
• judgments regarding future expected losses,
• current economic conditions,
• risk characteristics of various financial instruments,
• credit risk, and
• other factors.
These estimates involve uncertainties and matters of judgment
and cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions
could significantly affect the estimates.
Estimating the fair value of our investment in AgriBank is not
practical because the stock is not traded. As discussed in Notes 2
and 4, the investment is a requirement of borrowing from AgriBank.
A description of the methods and assumptions used to estimate
the fair value of each class of our financial instruments, for which
it is practical to estimate that value, follows:
Net loans: The estimate of the fair value of loan assets is determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows using current interest rates. Current interest rates are estimated based on similar
loans made or loans repriced to borrowers with similar credit risk.
This methodology is used because no active market exists for the
vast majority of these loans. Since the discount rates are based upon
internal pricing mechanisms and other estimates, we cannot determine whether the fair values presented would equal the exit price
negotiated in an actual sale. Furthermore, certain statutory or regulatory factors not considered in the valuation, such as the unique

We segregate the loan portfolio into pools of loans with homogenous characteristics for purposes of determining fair value of
loans not individually impaired. Expected future cash flows and
interest rates reflecting appropriate credit risk are separately
determined for each individual pool.
For fair value of loans individually impaired, we assume collection
will result only from the sale of the underlying collateral. Fair
value is estimated to equal the total net realizable value of the
underlying collateral. Costs to sell represent transaction costs and
are not included as a component of the asset’s fair value.
Investment securities: If an active market exists, the fair value is
based on currently quoted market prices. For those securities for
which an active market does not exist, we estimate the fair value
of these investments by discounting the expected future cash
flows using current interest rates adjusted for credit risk.
Other earning assets: Other earning assets result from successorin-interest contracts from our involvement with the federal government’s tobacco buy-out program. We estimate the fair value of
these investments by discounting the expected future cash flows
using current interest rates.
Note payable to AgriBank: Estimating the fair value of the note
payable to AgriBank is determined by segregating the note into
pricing pools according to the types and terms of the underlying
loans funded. We discount the estimated cash flows from these
pools using the current rate charged by AgriBank for additional
borrowings with similar characteristics.
Commitments to extend credit and letters of credit: Estimating the
fair value of commitments and letters of credit is determined by
the inherent credit loss in such instruments.

The estimated fair value of our financial instruments is as follows (in thousands):
2012
AS OF DECEMBER 31

CARRYING
AMOUNT

2011
FAIR VALUE

CARRYING
AMOUNT

2010
FAIR VALUE

CARRYING
AMOUNT

FAIR VALUE

Financial assets:

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Net loans

$16,466,225

$16,730,439

$14,929,916

$15,234,463

$13,963,075

$14,180,145

1,450,877

1,434,281

1,410,903

1,390,234

1,263,985

1,244,382

144,199

147,519

210,945

219,986

271,957

272,670

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Investment securities

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Other earning assets

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Financial liabilities:

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Note payable to AgriBank

$15,818,603

$16,068,610

$14,578,386

$14,851,754

$13,800,593

$13,964,869

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Unrecognized financial instruments:

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Commitments to extend credit and letters of credit

($3,027)

($3,497)

($3,751)
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
Quarterly consolidated results of operations for the year ended December 31 follows (in thousands):
2012

Net interest income

FIRST

SECOND

THIRD

FOURTH

TOTAL

$84,469

$86,520

$89,735

$93,055

$353,779

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

(9,204)

(1,412)

8,036

5,371

2,791

Patronage income

12,788

14,316

13,275

24,995

65,374

Other expense, net

25,405

12,868

31,012

37,781

107,066

8,117

6,405

3,243

2,951

20,716

$72,939

$82,975

$60,719

$71,947

$288,580

(Reversal of) provision for loan losses

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Provision for income taxes
Net income
2011

Net interest income

FIRST

SECOND

THIRD

FOURTH

TOTAL

$78,189

$75,621

$80,295

$82,370

$316,475
(10,416)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Provision for (reversal of) loan losses

15,992

6,963

(22,931)

(10,440)

Patronage income

12,418

12,090

12,105

25,135

61,748

Other expense, net

22,938

25,529

20,730

26,791

95,988

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Provision for income taxes
Net income
2010

Net interest income

2,984

2,380

4,537

4,159

14,060

$48,693

$52,839

$90,064

$86,995

$278,591

FIRST

SECOND

THIRD

FOURTH

TOTAL

$71,600

$73,936

$76,190

$82,752

$304,478
95,084

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Provision for (reversal of) loan losses

43,887

(12)

8,016

43,193

Patronage income

13,618

11,640

12,592

41,059

78,909

Other expense, net

6,333

16,285

16,294

21,511

60,423

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Provision for income taxes
Net income

3,166

2,118

2,429

6,215

13,928

$31,832

$67,185

$62,043

$52,892

$213,952

16
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
We have evaluated subsequent events through March 15, 2013, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
There have been no material subsequent events that would require recognition in our 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements or disclosures in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DISCLOSURE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY REGULATIONS (UNAUDITED)
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

General information regarding the business is discussed in Note 1
of this Annual Report.
The description of significant business developments, if any, is
discussed in the ‘‘Management’s Discussion and Analysis’’ portion
of this Annual Report.

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

There are 95 offices located throughout our territory making and servicing long and short-term loans. We own 69 buildings and lease 26
office spaces. In addition to our Louisville office facility, we have also
leased additional space in Louisville to accommodate staff. There are
92 sales offices which are supported by 7 special account units and 4
central processing units. A single building may house multiple offices.
In 4 of our owned facilities, we lease a portion of the office space to
third parties. The owned facilities have net book values ranging
between $19 thousand and $6.5 million. Currently, there are no buildings being held for resale. During 2012, construction was completed on
new facilities for the replacement of the following offices: Greensburg,
Indiana, Washington, Indiana, and Columbia, Tennessee.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Information regarding legal proceedings is discussed in Note 12 of
this Annual Report. We were not subject to any enforcement
actions at December 31, 2012.

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Information regarding our capital structure is discussed in Note 8
of this Annual Report.

DESCRIPTION OF LIABILITIES

Information regarding liabilities is discussed in Notes 7, 8, 9, 10, 12,
and 14 of this Annual Report.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The ‘‘Consolidated Five-Year Summary of Selected Financial Data’’
is presented at the beginning of this Annual Report.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Information regarding any material aspects of our financial condition, changes in financial condition, and results of operations are
discussed in the ‘‘Management’s Discussion and Analysis’’ portion
of this Annual Report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board of Directors is organized into the following committees
to carry out Board responsibilities:
• The Audit Committee oversees financial reporting, the adequacy
of our internal control systems, the scope of the Bank’s internal
audit program, the independence of the outside auditors, the
processes for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations
and the code of ethics. The Audit Committee also oversees the
adequacy of management’s action with respect to recommendations arising from auditing activities;
• The Governance Committee addresses issues of Board governance
and the Board’s continuing efforts to strengthen and renew the
Board, administers a process for maintaining and periodically
reviewing board policies, and administers a planning process
focused upon achieving our mission and maintaining a viable,
competitive institution;
• The Human Resources Committee oversees and provides overall
direction and/or recommendations for compensation, benefits
and human resource performance management programs; and
• The Risk Management Committee oversees the integration of
risk management activities throughout our organization. Committee members review ongoing risk assessments of current
and emerging risks to ensure adequate planning and resources
are directed at managing the identified risks. The Committee
also establishes and promotes an effective risk culture throughout our organization.
Information regarding directors who served as of December 31,
2012, including business experience in the last five years and any
other business interest where a director serves on the board of
directors or as a senior officer follows:

NAME AND POSITION

TERM OF OFFICE

BUSINESS EXPERIENCE AND EMPLOYMENT DURING PAST FIVE YEARS

D. Kevin Cox
Chair

First year of a four year term

Self-employed farmer (corn, soybeans, wheat, alfalfa, and feeder
cattle); trucking operation

Dan E. Flanagan
Vice Chair

Second year of a four year term

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Self-employed farmer (poultry, grain, and produce); business owner (sale/
removal of chicken litter); former Deputy Commissioner of Kentucky
Dept. of Agriculture, former VP of Campbellsville University

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Donald Blankenship
Secretary

First year of a four year term

R. Hugh Adams
Director

First year of a two year term

Dan B. Ashby
Director

Fourth year of a four year term

Barney Barnett
Outside Director

Third year of a four year term

Robert E. Barton
Director

Third year of a four year term

David A. Bates, III
Director

Fourth year of a four year term

Roger D. Earley
Director

Third year of a four year term

Self-employed farmer (vegetables, hay, corn, beans, wheat, and
custom farming; beef cattle)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Self-employed farmer (grain); retired from Tennessee Farm Bureau
(Field Service Director)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Self-employed farmer (beef, hay, fruit, and timber) and commercial pilot

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Retired (formerly president/owner of management recruiting business)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Self-employed farmer (tobacco, corn, wheat, and soybeans); country grain
elevator; previously, farming included background cattle operation

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Self-employed farmer (dairy, beef, corn, wheat, barley, and alfalfa)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Self-employed farmer (corn, soybeans, wheat, hay, beef cattle, brood
stock, heifers, and bulls)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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DISCLOSURE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY REGULATIONS (UNAUDITED)

NAME AND POSITION

TERM OF OFFICE

BUSINESS EXPERIENCE AND EMPLOYMENT DURING PAST FIVE YEARS

Kathryn Eschbacher-Timberlake
Director

Second year of a two year term

Part-time farmer (hay, corn, and soybeans; Registered Polled
Hereford Cattle and Donkeys) and Clerk for Indiana Department of
Child Services

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

David E. Hahn
Outside Director

Fourth year of a four year term

Professor, Department of Agricultural, Environmental and
Development Economics, College of Food, Agriculture, and
Environmental Sciences at Ohio State University and part-time
farmer (grain)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

John L. Kuegel Jr.
Director

First year of a four year term

James William Patterson
Director

First year of a four year term

Brandon Robbins
Director

Second year of a four year term

Self-employed farmer (dairy, hay, and grain)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Manager, Fruit Farm Market (apples, strawberries, and peaches) and
Vice President of Patterson Farms, Inc. (family farm operation)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Part-time farmer (cow-calf operation), Co-Owner of Mountain Farm
International, LLC (equipment dealership), and formerly a Financial
Services Officer for Farm Credit Mid-America

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

George E. Stebbins
Director

Fourth year of a four year term

Kaye Hurst Whitehead
Director

Second year of a four year term

Andrew Wilson
Director

Second year of a four year term

Tony G. Wolfe
Director

Third year of a four year term

Self-employed farmer (corn, soybeans, wheat, and weaner pigs)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Self-employed farmer (corn, soybeans, wheat, and hay; farrow-tofinish hog operation)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Self-employed farmer (com, soybeans, wheat, hay, cattle, and hogs)

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Self-employed farmer (corn, soybeans, wheat, and beef cattle);
Gibson County Councilman; former Field Representative for Indiana
Farm Bureau

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

ADDITIONAL BOARD INVOLVEMENT
BY OUR BOARD MEMBERS INCLUDES:

George E. Stebbins is a director of Montgomery County Farm
Bureau (agriculture).

R. Hugh Adams is a director of the Weakley County Farm Bureau
(agriculture) and the West Tennessee River Basin Authority (environmental conservation).

Kaye Hurst Whitehead serves as a director of the Delaware County
Farm Bureau (agriculture), the Delaware County Pork Producers
(agriculture), the Indiana University Health Ball Memorial Hospital
(medical facility), the Ivy Tech Community College (education), and
the AgriBank District Farm Credit Council Board (agriculture).

Dan B. Ashby serves on the University of Tennessee Chancellor’s
Associates Board (education).
Barney Barnett serves on the Farm Credit Foundations Plan Sponsor Committee (employee benefits).
Donald Blankenship serves on the AgriBank District Farm Credit
Council Board (agriculture).
D. Kevin Cox is a director of Parke County REMC (electric cooperative).
Dan E. Flanagan is the president of Taylor Co. Farmers Market (agriculture), chair of the Kentucky Council of Agriculture Board (agriculture),
vice chair of the Kentucky Council on Postsecondary Education Board
(education), AgriBank District Farm Credit Council Board (agriculture),
and National Farm Credit Council Board (agriculture).
David E. Hahn serves on the AgriBank District Farm Credit Council
Board (agriculture).
John L. Kuegel Jr. is a director of the Daviess County Farm Bureau Board
(agriculture), Daviess County Extension Council (cooperative education), and District 2 Chair of Kentucky Farm Bureau (agriculture).
James William Patterson is a director of Geauga County Farm
Bureau (agriculture) and is a trustee for the Ohio Farm Bureau
Federation (agriculture).
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Tony G. Wolfe is a director of the Gibson County Farm Bureau (agriculture) and the Indiana Association of Counties (county government
advocacy); Gibson County Chamber of Commerce (county tourism/
development); Shiloh Church Cemetery Board (community organization), and Selective Service System Board for Gibson County (military).
Directors are compensated in the form of an annual retainer paid
monthly for time spent in preparing and attending board and committee meetings, advisory committee meetings, customer
appreciation meetings, summer planning, and AgriBank annual
meetings. For the month of January 2012 the monthly rate paid
was $1,900. Beginning February 1, 2012, the retainer increased to a
monthly rate of $2,723. In addition, directors were compensated
at the daily rate of $350 for attendance at designated meetings
not specified above but set out by board policy. Directors were also
reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred in connection with
attending such meetings.
In 2012, the officers of the Board (Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary) and
the Chair of each of the Board’s standing committees (Audit, Governance, Human Resources, and Risk Management) received an annual
retainer paid quarterly for the additional time commitments of their
positions. The quarterly amounts paid were as follows: Board Chair —
$900, Board Vice Chair and Secretary — $375, and Board Committee
Chairs — $313. Additionally, directors serving on standing committees
received $175 for participation in conference call meetings.

Information regarding compensation for each director who served during 2012 follows:
NUMBER OF DAYS SERVED1

BOARD MEETINGS

R. Hugh Adams2

OTHER
OFFICIAL ACTIVITIES

COMPENSATION PAID
FOR SERVICE ON A
BOARD COMMITTEE5

NAME OF COMMITTEE

TOTAL COMPENSATION
PAID IN 2012

3.0

1.5

$—

Dan B. Ashby

16.0

35.5

208

Governance

$8,188
37,681

Barney Barnett

16.0

13.5

1,463

Audit

33,335

Robert E. Barton

16.0

9.5

525

Audit

34,147

David A. Bates, III

16.0

12.0

—

Donald Blankenship

16.0

29.5

—

D. Kevin Cox

16.0

31.5

938

Ernie Diggs4

3.0

2.5

—

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

32,922

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

36,972

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Risk Management

38,060

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

4,642

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Roger D. Earley

16.0

14.0

—

32,572

Kathryn Eschbacher-Timberlake

16.0

25.0

—

36,422

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Dan E. Flanagan

15.0

25.5

313

Risk Management

36,760

David E. Hahn

16.0

20.0

938

Governance

34,560

John L. Kuegel, Jr.2

5.0

3.5

—

8,888

Jimmy D. Mays3

11.0

3.5

—

24,403

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

James William Patterson

15.0

8.5

733

Brandon Robbins

16.0

6.0

—

George E. Stebbins

16.0

22.0

175

Kaye Hurst Whitehead

16.0

19.5

—

Andrew Wilson

16.0

13.5

1,250

Human Resources

Tony G. Wolfe

16.0

22.5

700

Audit

276.0

319.0

$7,243

Audit

33,831

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

32,222

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Audit

37,172

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

33,622

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

34,697

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Total
1

The number of board meeting days and per diem totals include travel time to and from meetings.

2

Elected to Board of Directors in October 2012.

35,372

$606,468

3

Term expired in October 2012.

4

Elected to AgriBank Board of Directors on March 5, 2012 and resigned from the Farm Credit Mid-America Board of Directors.

5

All directors serve on board committees. The additional compensation paid was for serving as a committee chair or participation in meetings not held in conjunction with board
meeting dates.
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SENIOR OFFICERS

The senior officers (and the date each began his/her current position) include:
NAME

POSITION

BUSINESS EXPERIENCE AND EMPLOYMENT DURING PAST FIVE YEARS

William L. Johnson

President and Chief Executive Officer

Vice President of Operations/Information Services for AgriBank from
August 2006 to March 2009; Senior Vice President and Chief Risk
Information Officer for AgriBank from March 2009 to January 2011;
Executive Vice President of Business Services for AgriBank from January
2011 to February 2011; President and Chief Executive Officer-Elect of Farm
Credit Services of Mid-America from March 2011 to May 2011; President and
Chief Executive Officer of Farm Credit Mid-America from May 2011
to present.*

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Randall Barnard

Senior Vice President — Risk Management

Vice President — Internal Audit October 1999 to February 2010; Senior Vice
President — Risk Management March 2010 to present.

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Paul Bruce

Senior Vice President — Financial
Operations and Chief Financial Officer

Senior Vice President — Financial Operations and Chief Financial Officer
from March 2003 to present.

Senior Vice President — Human Capital

Director of Training and Development from April 2001 to December 2008;
Vice President — Human Resources from January 2009 to May 2012; Senior
Vice President — Human Capital from June 2012 to present.

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Heather Hornback

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Philip W. Kimmel

Senior Vice President and
Chief Credit Officer

Senior Vice President — Credit from January 2008 to present.

Senior Vice President — Agribusiness

Vice President — AgriBusiness and Dealer Credit from March 2007 to
October 2011; Senior Vice President — AgriBusiness from November 2011
to present.

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Keith A. Lane

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

David Lynn

Senior Vice President — Financial Services

Senior Vice President — Financial Services from September 2002 to present.

Richard T. Poe

Senior Vice President — Financial Services

Senior Vice President — Financial Services from July 2007 to present.

Nancy J. Sparrow

General Counsel

Associate General Counsel from March 2001 to June 2008; General Counsel
from June 2008 to present.

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Daniel Wagner

Senior Vice President and
Chief Information Officer

Chief Security Officer and Director of Systems for Farm Credit Services of
America from April 2007 to October 2008; Vice President and Chief
Technology Officer for Farm Credit Services of America from November
2008 to May 2012; Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer of
Farm Credit Mid-America from June 2012 to present.

* On February 1, 2013 Farm Credit Services of Mid-America, ACA name was changed to Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA.

Additional business interest involvement by our senior officers includes:
Randall Barnard is a partner of Barnard Farm (family farming operation).
Paul Bruce serves on the Farm Credit Foundations Plan Sponsor Committee (employee benefits).
A summary of compensation earned by senior officers follows (in thousands):
NAME OF INDIVIDUAL

YEAR

SALARY

BONUS

DEFERRED/PERQUISITES

OTHER

TOTAL

William L. Johnson, CEO

2012

$414

$224

$5

$—

$643

William L. Johnson, CEO

2011

385

155

7

119

666

Donald W. Winters, CEO1

2011

429

—

12

7

448

Donald W. Winters, CEO

2010

396

146

8

—

550

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Aggregate number of senior officers, excluding CEO

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Nine

2012

$1,641

$686

$28

$49

$2,404

Nine2

2011

1,440

373

22

—

1,835

Nine3

2010

1,556

410

21

—

1,987

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

1

Mr. Winters retired August 2011.

2

Includes senior officer who retired February 2011.

3

Includes senior officer who retired July 2010.

The amount included in ‘‘Other’’ in the preceding table represents compensation paid related to the relocation of senior officers in 2012.
In 2011, the amount includes monetary and non-monetary gifts for the retirement of Mr. Winters which was effective August 31, 2011,
as well as the relocation of Mr. Johnson who became President and Chief Executive Officer-Elect effective March 16, 2011. Mr. Johnson
became President and Chief Executive Officer effective May 1, 2011.
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Members may request information on the compensation paid during 2012 to the individuals included in the preceding table. In
accordance with FCA Regulations, an advisory vote on CEO and/or
senior officer compensation is required when five percent of the
voting stockholders petition for such vote. Although the advisory
votes are non-binding, our Board of Directors will take into consideration the outcome of the vote when making future CEO and
senior officer compensation decisions.
The CEO’s base salary increase is determined by a combination
of an individual performance rating established by the Board of
Directors and the association’s performance. CEO variable compensation is based on the association’s performance criteria
including loan growth, crop insurance growth, credit quality,
credit administration, and efficiency ratio. These measures are
based on the business plan established by the Board of Directors.
Senior officer base salary increases are determined by each
officer’s individual performance rating. Senior officer variable
compensation is based on performance in three areas: individual,
team and association performance. Individual and team measures
are established by the CEO, and the association measures are
based on the business plan established by the Board of Directors.
These measures include loan growth, crop insurance growth,
credit quality, credit administration, and efficiency ratio. Incentives are calculates after the end of the plan year (the plan year is
the calendar year), and they are paid within 90 days of year end.

TRANSACTIONS WITH SENIOR OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Information regarding related party transactions is discussed in
Note 11 of this Annual Report.

TRAVEL, SUBSISTENCE, AND OTHER RELATED EXPENSES

Directors and senior officers are reimbursed for reasonable travel,
subsistence, and other related expenses associated with business
functions. A copy of our policy for reimbursing these costs is available by contacting us at:
Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA
P.O. Box 34390
Louisville, Kentucky 40232
(800) 444-FARM
www.e-farmcredit.com
The total directors’ travel, subsistence, and other related expenses
were $206 thousand, $180 thousand, and $141 thousand in 2012,
2011, and 2010, respectively.

INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

No events occurred during the past five years that are material to
evaluating the ability or integrity of any person who served as a
director or senior officer on January 1, 2013 or at any time
during 2012.

MEMBER PRIVACY

Farm Credit Administration Regulations protect members’ nonpublic personal financial information. Our directors and employees are
restricted from disclosing information about our association or
our members not normally contained in published reports or
press releases.

RELATIONSHIP WITH QUALIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

There were no changes in independent auditors since the last Annual
Report to members and we are in agreement with the opinion
expressed by the independent auditors. The total fees paid during
2012 were $173 thousand. The fees paid were for audit services.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The ‘‘Report of Management’’, ‘‘Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting’’, ‘‘Report of Audit Committee’’, ‘‘Independent
Auditor’s Report’’, ‘‘Consolidated Financial Statements’’, and ‘‘Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements’’ are presented prior to this
portion of the Annual Report.

CREDIT AND SERVICES TO YOUNG, BEGINNING,
AND SMALL FARMERS AND RANCHERS

Information regarding credit and services to young, beginning, and
small farmers and ranchers, and producers or harvesters of aquatic
products is discussed in an addendum to this Annual Report.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

We are an equal opportunity employer. It is our policy to provide
equal employment opportunity to all persons regardless of race,
color, religion, national origin, sex, age, disability, veteran status,
genetic information, sexual orientation, creed, marital status, status with regard to public assistance, membership or activity
involving a local human rights commission, or any other characteristic protected by law. We comply with all state and local equal
employment opportunity regulations. We conduct all personnel
decisions and processes relating to our employees and job applicants in an environment free of discrimination and harassment.
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FUNDS HELD PROGRAM
The Association offers a Funds Held Program (Funds Held) that
provides for customers to make uninsured advance payments on
loans. The following terms and conditions apply to all Funds Held
unless the loan agreement, or related documents, between the
Association and the customer provide for other limitations.

PAYMENT APPLICATION

Loan payments received by the Association before the loan has
been billed will normally be placed into Funds Held and applied
against the next installment date. Loan payments received after
the loan has been billed will be directly applied to the installment
due on the loan and related charges, if any. Funds received in
excess of the billed amount will be placed into Funds Held unless
the customer has specified the funds to be applied as a special prepayment of principal.

Commercial loans, with the exception of lines of credit, are paid a
rate of interest similar to short-term money market rates. The
rate was 0.40 percent as of January 1, 2013.

WITHDRAWALS

Money in Funds Held may be withdrawn for the following items,
depending on the customer’s loan program.
• Customers may request that Funds Held or interest on Funds
Held be applied to their loan balance at any time.
• Customers with real estate and commercial loans may use Funds
Held for future installments or insurance. In addition, customers
may make up to four additional withdrawals for other approved
purposes in lieu of increasing the loan amount. These four
withdrawals have a minimum size limit of the lesser of $500 or
the remaining balance in Funds Held in a 12-month period.

When a loan installment becomes due, moneys in Funds Held for
the loan will be automatically applied toward the installment on
the due date. Any accrued interest on Funds Held will be applied
first. If the balance in Funds Held does not fully satisfy the entire
installment, the customer must pay the difference by the installment due date.

ASSOCIATION OPTIONS

ACCOUNT MAXIMUM

If the customers sell, assign or transfer any interest in the underlying collateral, the Association may apply the funds in the
account against the remaining loan balance.

The amount in Funds Held may never exceed the unpaid principal
balance of the loan. Many loans have a further limit equal to the
total payments due for the next year. In addition, Funds Held on
loans with certain prepayment penalties may not exceed 10 percent of the original principal balance. Funds Held is generally not
available on revolving lines of credit loans.

INTEREST RATE

Interest will accrue on Funds Held at a simple rate of interest that
may be changed by the association from time to time. But the rate
will not exceed the interest rate charged on the related loan
except in rare cases. The current interest rate is based upon the
following criteria:
Real estate loans closed under the loan program in effect prior to
October 1, 1994, are paid a rate of interest equal to the loan rate.
Real estate loans closed under the loan program in effect on October 1,
1994, and later are paid a rate of interest similar to short-term money
market rates. The rate was 0.40 percent as of January 1, 2013.
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In the event of default on any loan, or if Funds Held exceeds the
maximum limit as established above, or if the Association discontinues its Funds Held program, the Association may apply funds in
the account to the unpaid balance and other amounts due, and
shall return any excess funds to the customer.

If all customers who are party to the loan are deceased, the Association
may apply the funds in the account to the remaining loan balance.

UNINSURED ACCOUNT

Funds Held is not a depository account and is not insured. In the
event of Association liquidation, customers having balances in Funds
Held shall be notified according to FCA regulations then in effect.

QUESTIONS

Please direct all questions regarding Funds Held to your local Farm
Credit Mid-America representative by calling 1-800-444-FARM (3276).

YOUNG, BEGINNING AND SMALL FARMERS AND RANCHERS
The Board of Directors has approved a policy to serve the credit and related
needs of young, beginning and small farmers and ranchers in our territory.
The definitions of young, beginning and small farmers and ranchers follow:
• Young: a farmer, rancher, producer or harvester of aquatic
products who is age 35 or younger as of the loan transaction date.
• Beginning: a farmer, rancher, producer or harvester of aquatic
products who has 10 years or less farming or ranching experience as of the loan transaction date.
• Small: a farmer, rancher, producer or harvester of aquatic
products who normally generates less than $250,000 in annual
gross sales of agricultural or aquatic products.

DEMOGRAPHICS

We have used the 2007 USDA Ag Census as our source of demographic
data for Young, Beginning and Small Farmers (YBS). There are
301,339 farms in the four state territory of Indiana, Kentucky, Ohio and
Tennessee. Of that number, there are 17,439 young farmers (or 5.8%),
76,052 beginning farmers (or 25.2%), and 282,415 small farmers (or 93.7%).
The census data is as of 2007 whereas our portfolio data is based on the
number of current YBS customers and/or loans in the current year.

MISSION STATEMENT

Our mission for the Young, Beginning and Small Farmer Program
is to provide sound and constructive credit to meet the needs of
the next generation of young, beginning and small farmers by
offering standard or special programs targeted to this group.

TARGETS AND GOALS

Total Loan Portfolio

The goal of the young farmer program is to maintain the percentage
that young farmers represent of the total farm members in our portfolio at 25% or higher; the goal of the beginning farmer program is to
maintain the percentage that beginning farmers represent of the total
farm members in our portfolio at 45% or higher; the goal of the small
farmer program is to maintain the percentage that small farmers represent of the total farm members in our portfolio at 70% or higher.
In 2012, there were 79,818 farm members in our portfolio. Of that number, there were 22,396 young farmers; 41,408 beginning farmers and
67,245 small farmers. These numbers surpass the goals as follows:
% OF MEMBER BASE
ACTUAL

GOAL

Young

28.1%

25.0%

Beginning

51.9%

45.0%

Small

84.3%

70.0%

.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................

New Loan Portfolio

The association has also set a goal that 20% or more of new loans
or leases will be closed to young farm customers; 30% or more new
loans or leases will be closed to beginning farmers and 60% or
more of new loans or leases will be closed to small farm customers.
% OF LOANS
ACTUAL

GOAL

Young

21.7%

20.0%

Beginning

33.8%

30.0%

Small

64.9%

60.0%

.........................................................................................................................
.........................................................................................................................

SAFETY AND SOUNDNESS OF THE PROGRAM

It is the responsibility of the President and Chief Executive Officer or his
designee for development of appropriate standards and procedures to support implementation of this policy and special programs approved by the

Board of Directors. The Board of Directors reviews the ongoing adequacy
of this policy at least annually and monitors progress on a quarterly basis.
Management has developed a young, beginning and small farmer
program that provides sound and constructive credit through
standard or special programs targeted to this group.

YBS PROGRAM FEATURES

We implemented a young, beginning and small farmer and rancher
program with four components, all of which will continue in 2013.
• Special underwriting program for young and beginning farmers.
In 2012, FCS provided special underwriting standards on 71 loans
representing $11.7 million in loan volume.
• Farm Service Agency (FSA) loan guarantee reimbursement of
50% for young or beginning farmers. In 2012, the association
waived its origination fees and reimbursed members 50% of
their FSA guarantee fees on 71 loans representing more than
$207 thousand in reimbursed FSA fees.
• Working with small and part-time farmers to help them invest in
diversified businesses and other assets that maintain and strengthen
the infrastructure of rural communities. In 2012, the association
made 401 loans representing $62.6 million in loan volume, to small
and part-time farmers for diversified investment purposes.
• Reimbursement of up to $500 dollars (one time only) to young or
beginning members who attend business, production, financial
management or agricultural leadership development programs
that will help them in their farm business.

STEWARDSHIP AND SPONSORSHIPS

In 2012, we held numerous grain marketing and crop seminars attended
by YBS customers throughout our territory. We also supported young
people by providing more than $125,000 in scholarships to students from
Indiana, Ohio, Kentucky and Tennessee enrolled in college programs
related to agriculture careers. The Board has a ‘‘stewardship philosophy’’
that contributed an additional $1.5 million in programs and gifts (for a
total of more than $1.6 million) that benefitted rural communities, young
people, commodity groups and other agricultural organizations. Employees also participated in and supported organizations like FFA, 4-H and
Young Farmer groups by conducting training and education sessions to
help the next generation of farmers.

OUTREACH AND EDUCATION

In 2012, more than 35 customers attended the DTN Ag Summit, a threeday agriculture outlook session held in Chicago. We sponsored specific
university programs designed to attract and retain young people in the
field of agriculture. The Kentucky Ag Leadership Program (KALP), conducted by the University of Kentucky, is an 18-month program designed
for young agricultural producers and agribusiness individuals who want
to be on the cutting edge of decisions that impact agriculture, rural communities and the society. Additionally, we are one of five founding
partners in Purdue’s Center for Commercial Agriculture, and are a member of the council with the objective of becoming the leading source of
management education and knowledge generation for farmers.
In 2012, we entered into a partnership with the University of Tennessee in creating the UT Scholars Program which will provide
internships, educational opportunities and financial support to students pursuing degrees — and eventually careers — in agriculture.
In 2013, we will partner with other agricultural organizations in supporting
the Center for Cooperative, Business and Community Education and Development. Through The Ohio State University, the program will provide
innovative curriculum, student engagement and international learning.
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NOTICE TO CUSTOMERS CONCERNING INVESTMENTS
This notice contains information about your stock investment in to vote. Holders of Certificates have no voting rights. In all other
Farm Credit Mid-America, ACA (Association). Please read it care- respects, Stock and Certificates have substantially the same rights
fully and make sure you understand both the benefits and risks and restrictions.
of an investment in the Association.
Association bylaws provide that dividends may be paid on Stock
Association Capitalization Bylaws (a copy of which is included as or Certificates with the approval of the Board. Dividends may not
part of this publication) require an investment in stock or partici- be paid if, after or due to such action, the permanent capital of the
pation certificates in the amount of 2 percent of the loan amount Association would thereafter fail to meet the minimum capital
or $1,000, whichever is less, when obtaining a loan from either adequacy standards established by the FCA.
of its wholly owned subsidiaries, the Farm Credit Mid-America,
FLCA (FLCA) or the Farm Credit Mid-America, PCA (PCA). The The FLCA or PCA takes a lien on the Stock or Certificates held by
Association’s Board of Directors (Board) has the discretion to a customer as additional security for the customer’s loan. If the
apply the stock requirement on a per-customer basis or a per-loan customer defaults, the value of the customer’s investment (not
basis. Currently, the stock requirement is on a per customer basis. to exceed par value, or face amount) may be applied against the
balance due on the loan. If the customer’s Stock or Certificates
The Association also sells stock or participation certificates to any are transferred, they are still subject to this lien. In any event,
eligible customer of the FLCA or PCA as a condition of obtaining Stock and Certificates are transferable only to persons eligible
a lease and as a condition for purchasing related services. The to purchase such equities.
amount of stock or participation certificates required may range
from one share to no more than the requirement for obtaining a Stock and Certificates do not appreciate in value. Any retirement
loan, at the discretion of the Board. At this time, the Board has or conversion will be at their original issue price or, if less, their
decided to require one share for both leasing and related services. book value. The possibility that this investment may result in a
loss is discussed below under the heading “Impairment.”
The voting stock issued by the Association is called “Class D Stock”
(Stock) and is issued only to farmers, ranchers and producers or RETIREMENT OF STOCK AND CERTIFICATES
harvesters of aquatic products. Other persons who are eligible to Under Association bylaws, Stock and Certificates are retired only
borrow or lease from or purchase financially related services with at the discretion of the Board. Stock is retired at the lower of book
the FLCA or PCA, but who are not eligible to own Stock, must pur- value or par value, while Certificates are retired at the lower of
chase “Participation Certificates” (Certificates), which are issued book value or face amount. Book value will be determined in
on essentially the same terms as Stock except as described below. accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
Stock and Certificates issued as a condition of doing business with
the Association (which may include stock issued in connection with
loan renewals, assumptions, refinancing, etc.) are an investment
in the Association that is at risk and not a compensating balance.

Under Federal Law, there is no automatic right to have Stock or
Certificates retired upon repayment of the customer’s loan or
when the customer ceases to conduct other business with the
FLCA and/or PCA.

HOW STOCK AND CERTIFICATES ARE PURCHASED

Under the Association’s existing Equity Policy, equity is on a customer basis and is required on existing fixed, adjustable or variable rate loans originated after July 1, 1995, in an amount not less
than two percent or $1,000, whichever is less, according to the
customer’s total loan balances (when the customer is the same
on each loan).

Shares of Stock (and units of Certificates) are sold for their par
value (or face amount) of $5 each and can be paid for either with
cash or with the proceeds of a loan.
When the purchase price is borrowed, the amount of the FLCA
and/or PCA loan includes the cost of the Stock or Certificates and
interest is charged on the entire loan. The portion of the FLCA or
PCA loan proceeds attributable to the purchase price of the Stock
or Certificates is withheld and applied to the purchase price of the
Stock or Certificates. The total amount of the loan, including the
portion used to pay for the Stock or Certificates, is a legally enforceable obligation that must be repaid in full. The Association does
not issue physical certificates for Stock or Certificates. Instead,
the ownership of Stock or Certificates is evidenced by entries
recorded on the combined books of the Association as reflected
in periodic account statements sent to each customer.

CERTAIN IMPORTANT CHARACTERISTICS
OF STOCK AND CERTIFICATES

The principal difference between Stock and Certificates is that
the Stock entitles its holder to one vote (regardless of how many
shares are owned) with respect to the election of Association
directors and other matters on which stockholders are entitled
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Equity of one share is required on a lease or for a non-customer to
qualify for related services.
The Equity Policy may be amended by the Board at any time at
their sole discretion and in accordance with the Act, Regulations
and Bylaws.
Effective 01/01/03, the Board’s policy permits the retirement
of customer equity only if the Association’s permanent capital
percentage is above the Board’s stated minimum, established
annually. The Board allows stock to be retired by management
provided that retirements are in accordance with the Association's
capital plan; the Association's permanent capital ratio will be in
excess of 12 percent after any such retirements; the Association
meets and maintains all applicable minimum surplus and collateral standards; and the aggregate amount of stock purchases
and retirements are reported to the Board of Directors monthly.

Except for loans in default, customer equity may be retired under
any of the following conditions:
 j^[Ykijec[hÉi_dZ[Xj[Zd[ii\ehWbeWdehWb[Wi[_ijejWbbo
paid off,
 Wded#Xehhem[h_idebed][hWfkhY^Wi[he\h[bWj[Zi[hl_Y[ieh
 j^[Ykijec[hÉibeWd_iiebZ_djej^[i[YedZWhocWha[jm_j^ekj
recourse.
The retirement policy may be suspended or modified at any time
at the discretion of the Board in order to protect the financial
condition of the Association.

Of course, the Association will take all feasible action to prevent its
capital from becoming impaired. The FLCA and PCA maintain loss
reserves (and surplus accounts) to protect against this possibility.

The Farm Credit Act provides a mechanism for providing financial assistance to distressed Farm Credit System entities. This
mechanism is described in the Association’s 2012 Annual Report.
However, the assistance mechanisms in the Farm Credit Act
provide no assurance to customers that Stock and Certificates
will be protected. Therefore members are advised to review the
financial statements of the Association and of the Bank and other
The Association is prohibited from retiring Stock or Certificates available information about the Farm Credit System. Copies of
if such retirement results in the Association’s failure to satisfy the Association and the Bank’s Annual and Interim Reports to
the minimum capital adequacy standards established by the FCA. Investors are available from the Association upon request.
Of course, even though you may be given the opportunity to have
your stock retired, you are not required to retire your Stock or
Certificates after repaying your FLCA and/or PCA loan and may
continue to hold this investment. However, if you do not borrow
from the FLCA and/or PCA during the following two years, your
Class D Stock will be converted into non-voting Class C Stock.

ASSOCIATION PERMANENT CAPITAL STANDARDS

The Association presently meets its minimum permanent capital
standard. The Association does not know of any reason it will not
meet its permanent capital standard on the next earnings distribution date, though no earnings distribution date is scheduled.

IMPAIRMENT

Your ownership of Stock or Certificates in the Association is an
investment and is subject to certain risks that could result in a partial or complete loss of investment. You are responsible for repayment of the entire amount of the FLCA and/or PCA loan, including
the amount borrowed to pay for your Stock or Certificates, regardless of the value of your Stock or Certificates. These risks include:
 beWdbeii[i[nf[h_[dY[ZXoj^[<B97WdZ%ehF97WiWh[ikbje\
inadequate evaluation of credit risks or adverse trends in agriculture, such as loss of international markets, over-production,
weather conditions or disease,
 _dYh[Wi[i_dj^[Wcekdje\ded#WYYhkWb<B97WdZ%ehF97beWdi
and properties acquired from borrowers that reduce revenues,
and
 _cfW_hc[dje\7]h_8Wda8WdaijeYaemd[ZXoj^[7iieY_Wj_ed
due to losses in other associations within the district, loan losses
and operating expenses of the Bank and the Bank’s joint and
several liabilities on Systemwide debt securities issues by other
Banks in the national Farm Credit System.
As a result of these or any other risks, the capital of the Association
could become impaired. Impairment means that the book value
of the Stock or Certificates has declined below par value (or face
value), which is $5 per share or unit. (For example, if the Association
were to suffer loan losses which exceeded its other income, its bad
debt reserve and its surplus accounts, the Stock and Certificates
could have a book value less than $5 and thus would be impaired.)
So long as the capital of the Association is impaired, its customers
would receive less than they had paid for their stock upon retirement. If the Association were to be liquidated at the time when its
capital is impaired, holders of Stock or Certificates would receive
less than the par value or face amount of their investment and may
suffer a total loss of their investment in the Association. However,
in any event, customers would remain liable for the full amount of
their loan from the FLCA and/or PCA, including the portion used
to pay for the purchase of Stock or Certificates.
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ARTICLE VIII - CAPITALIZATION
800

Authorized Shares

and in accordance with provisions of Section 815
(Application of Earnings and Losses), Section 830
(Dividends), Section 835 (Patronage Refunds), Section
840 (Transfer), Section 845 (Conversion), Section 850
(Retirement), Section 855 (Impairment) and Section
860 (Liquidation) of these Bylaws.
(d) Stock Protection: When retiring Class A Preferred Stock
in accordance with the Act, Regulations and these
Bylaws, the stock shall be retired at par value.
(e) Fractional Shares: No fractional shares of Class A
Preferred Stock shall be issued or paid.

The Association is authorized to issue:
(a) one million (1,000,000) shares of Class C Preferred
Stock with a par value of $5 per share to be issued as
provided in Section 810.3 of these Bylaws;
(b) an unlimited number of shares of Class D Common
Stock with a par value of $5 per share to be issued as
provided in Sections 810.4 and 845.2 of these Bylaws;
(c) the outstanding number of Participation Certificates
as of the Merger Date, of FLBA 4th, FLBA B and FLBA
M and PCA 4th issued prior to October 6, 1988, which 810.2 Class B Common Stock
were converted by book entry at the par, face or stated
(a) Issue: There shall be no Class B Common Stock issued
value of $5 per unit into a like number of Class A
other than those shares issued as a result of the conParticipation Certificates of the Association;
version of FLBA 4th, FLBA B and FLBA M's voting stock
(d) an unlimited number of Class B Participation
and PCA 4th's Class B voting stock as of the Merger
Certificates, with a face value of $5 per unit to be
date.
issued as provided in Section 810.6 of these Bylaws;
(b) Voting Rights: Class B Common Stock shall have voting
and
rights.
(e) such number of shares of such other classes of Capital
(c) Rights: Rights of a holder to dividends, to patronage
Stock as may be provided for in an amendment or
refunds, to transfer, to retirement, upon loss and upon
amendments to these Bylaws as adopted pursuimpairment shall be subject to the Act, Regulations
ant to Article XIV, provided, however, if the class
and in accordance with provisions of Section 815
being proposed in any amendment or amendments
(Application of Earnings and Losses), Section 830
is for Preferred Stock other than Preferred Stock
(Dividends), Section 835 (Patronage Refunds), Section
to be issued to the Farm Credit System's Financial
840 (Transfer), Section 845 (Conversion), Section 850
Assistance Corporation, it shall be approved by major(Retirement), Section 855 (Impairment) and Section
ity of the shares of each class of stock affected by
860 (Liquidation) of these Bylaws.
the preference, voting as a class, whether or not such
(d) Stock Protection: When retiring Class B Common Stock
classes are otherwise authorized to vote.
in accordance with the Act, Regulations and these
Bylaws, the stock shall be retired at par value.
805
Ownership
(e) Fractional Shares: No fractional shares of Class B
Evidence of ownership of Capital Stock and Participation
Common Stock shall be issued or paid.
Certificates may be by book entry or in definitive form
as prescribed by the Board.
810.3 Class C Preferred Stock
(a) Issue: This stock may be issued in accordance with the
In the event of an Authorization Event under Section 210
Act and Regulations:
hereof, a borrower’s required investment in Association
1. To the bank and to investors;
stock/participation certificates (and the required conver2. In such amounts and to such persons as may be
sion of such investment into a different class of equity)
permitted under a plan adopted by the Board;
shall be determined by reference to the borrowing rela3. For allocated surplus distributions, dividend paytionship with MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA, as the case
ments, and patronage distributions; and
may be. Accordingly, upon an Authorization Event, all
4. In accordance with Section 845.2 of these Bylaws.
references to loans and outstanding loan balances in this
(b) Voting Rights: Class C Preferred Stock shall have no
Article shall refer to aggregate loans held or originated
voting rights.
by Association, MidAm, PCA and MidAm, FLCA.
(c) Rights: Rights of a holder to dividends, to patronage
refunds, to transfer, to retirement, upon loss and upon
810
Issue, Rights, Preferences and Limitations
impairment shall be subject to the Act, Regulations
of Classes of Stock
and in accordance with provisions of Section 815
810.1 Class A Preferred Stock
(Application of Earnings and Losses), Section 830
(a) Issue: There shall be no Class A Preferred Stock issued
(Dividends), Section 835 (Patronage Refunds), Section
other than those shares issued as a result of the con840 (Transfer), Section 845 (Conversion), Section 850
version on Merger Date of PCA 4th's Class A non-voting
(Retirement), Section 855 (Impairment) and Section
stock or a conversion in accordance with Section 845.2
860 (Liquidation) of these Bylaws.
of these Bylaws.
(d) Fractional Shares: No fractional shares of Class C
(b) Voting Rights: Class A Preferred Stock shall have no
Preferred Stock shall be issued or paid.
voting rights.
(c) Rights: Rights of a holder to dividends, to patronage 810.4 Class D Common Stock
refunds, to transfer, to retirement, upon loss and upon
(a) Issue: Class D Common Stock may only be issued to
impairment shall be subject to the Act, Regulations
borrowers who are farmers, ranchers or producers
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or harvesters of aquatic products and other require(Application of Earnings and Losses), Section 830
ments of such borrowers as specified in the Act and
(Dividends), Section 835 (Patronage Refunds), Section
Regulations.
840 (Transfer), Section 845 (Conversion), Section 850
(b) Voting Rights: Class D Common Stock shall have voting
(Retirement), Section 855 (Impairment) and Section
rights.
860 (Liquidation) of these Bylaws.
(c) Rights: Rights of a holder to dividends, to patronage
(d) Protection of Participation Certificates: When retiring
refunds, to transfer, to retirement, upon loss and upon
Class A Participation Certificates in accordance with
impairment shall be subject to the Act, Regulations
the Act, Regulations and these Bylaws, the units shall
and in accordance with provisions of Section 815
be retired at par value.
(Application of Earnings and Losses), Section 830
(e) Fractional Units: No fractional units of Class A
(Dividends), Section 835 (Patronage Refunds), Section
Participation Certificates shall be issued or paid.
840 (Transfer), Section 845 (Conversion), Section 850
(Retirement), Section 855 (Impairment) and Section 810.6 Class B Participation Certificates
860 (Liquidation) of these Bylaws.
(a) Issue: Class B Participation Certificates may be issued
(d) Fractional Shares: No fractional shares of Class D
in accordance with the Act and Regulations:
Common Stock shall be issued or paid.
1. To borrowers who are rural residents to capitalize
(e) Condition to Borrowing:
their rural housing loans.
1. Any borrower who is entitled to own Class D
2. To borrowers who are persons or organizations
Common Stock shall acquire voting stock in the
furnishing to farmers and ranchers farm related
Association as a condition for obtaining a loan from
services directly related to their agricultural prothe Association, MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA. The
duction, to capitalize their loans.
amount of Class D Common Stock which a borrower
3. To other persons or organizations who are eligible
shall be required to acquire shall be two (2) percent
to borrow or participate in loans from Association,
of the loan amount or $1,000, whichever is less. The
MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA but are not eligible
Board shall establish from time to time whether
to hold voting stock.
the stock requirement shall apply to each loan to
4. For allocated surplus distributions, dividend paya borrower or apply to a borrower’s aggregate outments, and patronage distributions.
standing loan balance on all borrower’s loans (as
5. To any person who is not a stockholder but who is
used in this section shall only include those loans,
eligible to borrow from Association, MidAm, PCA
including the new loan, where the borrowers are
or MidAm, FLCA for the purpose of qualifying
the same on each loan).
such person for technical assistance, financially
2. If the Association fails to meet the minimum permarelated services, and leasing services offered by
nent capital standards the Class D Common Stock
Association, MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA.
shall be purchased from the Association.
(b) Voting Rights: Class B Participation Certificates shall
3. Loan origination fees may be charged as a condition
have no voting rights.
of borrowing from the Association, MidAm, PCA or
(c) Rights: Rights of a holder to dividends, to patronage
MidAm, FLCA as the Board from time to time may
refunds, to transfer, to retirement, upon loss and upon
determine.
impairment shall be subject to the Act, Regulations
(f) Condition to Lease: As a condition of obtaining a lease
and in accordance with provisions of Section 815
from Association, MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA any
(Application of Earnings and Losses), Section 830
lessee who is entitled to own Class D Common Stock
(Dividends), Section 835 (Patronage Refunds), Section
shall be required to acquire Class D Common Stock
840 (Transfer), Section 845 (Conversion), Section 850
in an amount as determined by the Board from time
(Retirement), Section 855 (Impairment) and Section
to time. The equity requirement to be not less than
860 (Liquidation) of these Bylaws.
one share or the minimum requirement as set out in
(d) Fractional Units: No fractional units of Class B
the Act and Regulations, if any, and not to exceed the
Participation Certificates shall be issued or paid.
equity requirement for obtaining a loan.
(e) Condition to Borrowing:
1. Any borrower who is entitled to own Class
810.5 Class A Participation Certificates
B Participation Certificates shall acquire
(a) Issue: There shall be no Class A Participation
Participation Certificates as a condition for
Certificates issued other than those units issued as
obtaining a loan from Association, MidAm, PCA or
a result of the conversion of FLBA 4th, FLBA B, FLBA
MidAm, FLCA. The amount of Class B Participation
M and PCA 4th's Participation Certificates as of the
Certificates which a borrower shall acquire shall
Merger Date.
be two (2) percent of the loan amount or $1,000,
(b) Voting Rights: Class A Participation Certificates shall
whichever is less. The Board shall establish from
have no voting rights.
time to time whether the certificate requirement
(c) Rights: Rights of a holder to dividends, to patronage
shall apply to each loan to a borrower or apply to
refunds, to transfer, to retirement, upon loss and upon
a borrower’s aggregate outstanding loan balance
impairment shall be subject to the Act, Regulations
on all borrower’s loans (as used in this section shall
and in accordance with provisions of Section 815
only include those loans, including the new loan,
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where the borrowers are the same on each loan).
2. If the Association fails to meet the minimum permanent capital standards, the Class B Participation
Certificates shall be purchased from the
Association.
3. Loan origination fees may be charged as a condition 825
of borrowing as the Board from time to time may 825.1
determine.
(f) Condition to Lease or Purchase of Financially Related
Services: As a condition of obtaining a lease or purchasing financially related services from Association,
MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA any lessee or purchaser
of financially related services who is entitled to own
Class B Participation Certificates shall be required
to acquire Class B Participation Certificates in an
amount as determined by the Board from time to time.
The equity requirement to be not less than one share 825.2
or the minimum requirement as set out in the Act
and Regulations, if any, and not to exceed the equity
requirement for obtaining a loan.

815
Application of Earnings or Losses
815.1 At the end of each fiscal year, the Association shall

815.2

820

surplus account. Except as provided in Section 815, the
unallocated surplus account may not be reduced and no
part thereof may be transferred to the allocated surplus
account.

Allocated Surplus Accounts

The Association may, subject to the Act and the
Regulations, create and maintain an allocated
surplus account consisting of earnings held therein
and allocated to borrowers on a patronage basis in
accordance with Section 835 of these Bylaws. In the
event of a net loss for any fiscal year, such allocated
surplus account shall be subject to impairment in the
order specified in Section 815.2 of these Bylaws, and on
the basis of latest allocations first.
Association, MidAm, PCA and MidAm, FLCA shall have
a first lien on all surplus account allocations owned
by any borrower, and all distributions thereof, as
additional collateral for such borrower's indebtedness
to Association, MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA, as the
case may be.

apply its earnings (including patronage allocations and 825.3 When the debt of a borrower is in default or is in
refunds received from the FCB) for such fiscal year in
the process of final liquidation, the Association
the following order:
may, upon notice to the borrower, order any and all
(a) to cover operating expenses, including additions to
surplus account allocations owned by such borrower
loan valuation reserves as provided by law;
to be applied against the indebtedness to Association,
(b) to restore the amount of any impairment of Stock and
MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA, as the case may be. Any
Participation Certificates as prescribed in Section
such retirement and application against indebtedness
855.2 of these Bylaws;
of surplus account allocations shall be before similar
(c) to restore the amount of any impairment of allocated
retirement and application of Stock or Participation
surplus;
Certificates owned by the borrower.
(d) to restore the amount of any impairment of paid-in
surplus;
825.4 At the Board's discretion and subject to the Act,
(e) to create and maintain an unallocated surplus account
Regulations, and any other restrictions, when all of the
as provided in Section 820 of these Bylaws;
Stock and Participation Certificates of the Association
(f) to pay dividends on Stock of the Association if authoowned by a borrower are retired or otherwise disposed
rized pursuant to Section 830 of these Bylaws;
of, any surplus account allocations owned by such
(g) to make patronage distributions if authorized pursuborrower may also be retired, upon request by the
ant to Section 835 of these Bylaws; and
borrower and subject to the approval of the Board, and
(h) to transfer any remaining earnings to the reserved
the proceeds paid to the borrower. Alternatively, if
surplus account.
the Board so directs, upon notice to the borrower such
surplus account applications may be applied against
In the event of a net loss for any fiscal year, after applying
any of the borrower's indebtedness to Association,
earnings for such fiscal year as provided in Section 815.1
MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA, as the case may be. As
above, such loss shall be absorbed by, first, charges to the
a condition, however, to the approval of a former
unallocated surplus account; second, impairment of paidborrower's application for an advance within two (2)
in surplus; third, impairment of the allocated surplus
years after retirement hereunder, the applicant must
account; fourth, impairment of Class B Common Stock,
first repay any allocated surplus proceeds resulting
Class D Common Stock, Class A Participation Certificates,
from such retirement which would not otherwise have
Class B Participation Certificates, concurrently; and
been paid through normal distributions.
fifth, impairment of Class A Preferred Stock and Class
C Preferred Stock, concurrently. Notwithstanding this 825.5 Subject to the Act and the Regulations, allocated
Section, Class B Common Stock and Class A Participation
surplus may be distributed, oldest allocations first,
Certificates shall be retired in accordance with Section
in Class C Preferred Stock of the Association or in
4.9A of the Act.
cash. The cash proceeds may be applied against the
indebtedness of the borrower to the Association. In
Surplus Accounts
no event shall such distributions reduce the surplus
The Association shall create and maintain an unalloaccount below the minimum amount prescribed by the
cated surplus account and may maintain an allocated
Act and the Regulations. Distributions of less than the
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full amount of all allocations issued as of the same date
shall be on a pro rata basis. If any part of a distribution
in Class C Preferred Stock to one borrower is less than
$5, such distribution may be held by the Association
and accumulated with subsequent partial distributions
to equal one whole share of Class A Preferred Stock or
Class C Preferred Stock.

830
Dividends
830.1 In accordance with the Act and the Regulations,
the Board may declare dividends on the Stock and
Participation Certificates of the Association. Such
dividends may be paid on Class A Preferred Stock and
Class C Preferred Stock alone or on all classes of Stock
and Participation Certificates. No dividends may
be paid on Class B Common Stock, Class D Common
Stock, Class A Participation Certificates or Class B
Participation Certificates during any fiscal year with
respect to which the Association has obligated itself
to distribute earnings on a patronage basis pursuant
to Section 835 of these Bylaws. The rate of dividends
paid on Class A Preferred Stock and Class C Preferred
Stock for any fiscal year may not be less than the rate
of dividends paid on Class B Common Stock, Class D
Common Stock, Class A Participation Certificates or
Class B Participation Certificates for such year and,
similarly, the rate of dividends on Class B Common
Stock and Class D Common Stock may not be less than
the rate paid on Class A Participation Certificates and
Class B Participation Certificates.

830.2 Dividends may be paid to holders of record on the

effective date of the declaration, provided the Stock or
Participation Certificates were outstanding for at least
sixty (60) calendar days prior to the effective date of the
declaration.

830.3 Dividends on Stock and Participation Certificates may

be paid in cash, Class C Preferred Stock, or partly in
cash and partly in Stock, except that dividends on Stock
held by the FCB shall be paid in cash. If any part of such
dividends payable in Stock to one borrower are less than
$5, the dividends may be distributed in cash or held
by the Association and accumulated with subsequent
dividends until the retained dividends equal $5, so that
the dividends may be distributed as one whole share of
Class C Preferred Stock.

830.4 Dividends shall be noncumulative.
835
Patronage Refunds
835.1 Prior to the beginning of any fiscal year, the Board

may adopt a resolution in accordance with the Act
and the Regulations, so as to obligate the Association
to distribute to borrowers on a patronage basis all or
any portion of available net earnings of Association
for such fiscal year, or for that and subsequent fiscal
years. However, no patronage distribution will be paid
if the earnings available for distribution do not exceed
$500,000.

835.2 All patronage distributions shall be in the proportion

that the amount of interest earned by Association,
MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA on its loans to each
borrower bears to the total interest earned by
Association, MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA on all such
loans outstanding during the fiscal year, except that
another proportionate patronage basis may be used
upon approval by the Board in accordance with the Act
and the Regulations.

835.3 Net earnings of any fiscal year shall be available

for patronage distribution only after making the
applications as required in (a) through (e) of Section
815 and paying dividends on Class A Preferred Stock
and Class C Preferred Stock. Patronage allocations and
refunds received from the FCB in the form of stock shall
be excluded from net earnings available for patronage
distributions and dividends. The amount available for
patronage distributions for any fiscal year shall in no
event exceed the net earnings from patronage from
Association, MidAm, PCA and MidAm, FLCA borrowers
and from the patronage received from the FCB in the
form of cash for such year.

835.4 Patronage distributions may be in cash, Class C

Preferred Stock, allocations of earnings retained in
an allocated surplus account, or any one or more of
such forms of distribution, except that at least twenty
percent of the total patronage distributions to any
borrower for any fiscal year shall always be in cash.
Cash distributions may not exceed twenty percent of
the patronage distribution if such distribution would
cause the surplus account at the end of the fiscal
year for which the distribution is paid to be less than
the minimum amount prescribed by the Act and the
Regulations. Any part of a patronage distribution in
Class C Preferred Stock to one borrower that is not a
multiple of $5 may be distributed in cash or held by
the Association for the borrower and included in a
subsequent distribution.

835.5 Each holder of Class B Common Stock or Class D

Common Stock of this Association shall, by such act
alone, consent that the amount of any distributions with
respect to patronage which are made in written notices
of allocation, as defined in 26 U.S.C. 1388 (i.e. patronage
allocations of surplus account and patronage refunds
paid in Class C Preferred Stock of the Association, and
which are received by him or her from the Association),
will be taken into account as income by such person at
the stated dollar amounts in the manner provided in 26
U.S.C. 1385(a) in the taxable year in which such written
notices of allocation are received. Such holder of Class B
Common Stock or Class D Common Stock also consents
by such act alone, to take into account as income in the
same manner the amount of any distributions with
respect to patronage provided he or she receives written
notice from the Association that such amount has
been applied on his or her indebtedness to Association,
MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA, as the case may be.
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835.6 The Association shall obtain the written consent of each

holder of Class A Participation Certificates or Class
B Participation Certificates that the amount of any
distributions with respect to the holder's patronage,
which are made in written notices of allocations as
defined in 26 U.S.C. 1388 (i.e., patronage allocations
of surplus account, patronage refunds paid in Class
C Preferred Stock, or distributions with respect to
patronage that have been applied to the holder's
indebtedness to Association, MidAm, PCA or MidAm,
FLCA, as the case may be, and for which the holder has
received written notice), will be taken into account as
income by the holder at the stated dollar amounts in the
manner provided for in 26 U.S.C. 1385(a) in the taxable
year in which such written notices of allocation are
received. The form of consent shall be prescribed by
the Board, except that it shall be continuing in effect
until revoked by the Class A Participation Certificate
or Class B Participation Certificate holder, and it may
be included as part of the loan application or other
appropriate form signed by borrowers. Consent may
also be obtained by use of a qualified check in the
manner provided for in 26 U.S.C. 1388.

for such equities issued after that date, a retirement plan
in effect at the time the loan was made. Such equities
shall be retired at par, even if book value is less than par.
Such equities may also be retired under other conditions
approved by the Board with prior approval of the FCA.

850.2 Class C Preferred Stock, Class D Common Stock and
Class B Participation Certificates

Subject to the Act, Regulations and any other restrictions,
such equities shall be retireable only at the discretion of
the Board and not on a date certain or upon the happening
of an event such as repayment of a loan or pursuant to an
automatic retirement or revolvement plan. Such equities
shall be retired at their book value and shall not exceed
their par value. No such equities shall be retired unless
after the retirement the institution would continue to
meet the minimum permanent capital standards or the
interim permanent capital standards, as the case may be.

850.3 Mandatory Retirement

At the Board's discretion and subject to the Act,
Regulations and any other restrictions (including minimum permanent capital standards), the Board may order
the retirement of such amounts of Class A Preferred
Stock or Class C Preferred Stock as it may determine
in accordance with procedures which assure equitable
treatment of all holders of Class A Preferred Stock or
Class C Preferred Stock.

835.7 In the event of an Authorization Event under Section

210 hereof, the Association’s net earnings for purposes
of computing and paying patronage dividends shall
include the net earnings of MidAm, PCA and MidAm,
FLCA (computed on a consolidated basis).

840
Transfer
840.1 Stock and Participation Certificates may be transferred

850.4 Retirement in the Event of Default

all matters relating to its Stock and Participation
Certificates.

When the debt of a borrower is in default, the Association
may, upon notice to such borrower, order the retirement
of any Stock or Participation Certificates held by the
borrower and the proceeds thereof applied against the
borrower's indebtedness to Association, MidAm, PCA or
MidAm, FLCA, as the case may be. Any such retirement
and application of Stock or Participation Certificates shall
be after similar retirement and application of surplus
account allocations owned by the borrower.

845 Conversion
845.1 Each class of Stock and Participation Certificates may be

855
Impairment
855.1 Any losses which result in an impairment of the

to persons or organizations eligible to receive or to hold
such Stock or Participation Certificates as provided in
Section 810 of these Bylaws.

840.2 The Association shall be its own transfer agent in

converted into any other class of Stock or Participation
Certificates for which the holder is eligible as provided
in Section 810.

Association's capital shall be borne ratably by, first, each
share of Class B Common Stock and Class D Common
Stock, and each unit of Class A Participation Certificates
and Class B Participation Certificates outstanding;
and second, each share of Class A Preferred Stock and
Class C Preferred Stock outstanding. Notwithstanding
this Section, Class B Common Stock and Class A
Participation Certificates shall be retired in accordance
with Section 4.9A of the Act.

845.2 Class B Common Stock shall be converted into Class

A Preferred Stock within two years after the holder
thereof ceases to be a borrower from Association,
MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA. Class D Common Stock
shall be converted into Class C Preferred Stock within
two years after the holder thereof ceases to be a
borrower from Association, MidAm, PCA or MidAm,
FLCA.

850
Retirement
850.1 Class A Preferred Stock, Class B Common Stock,
and Class A Participation Certificates
Retirement may be upon repayment of a loan or under
a retirement plan in effect prior to January 6, 1988, and
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855.2 Impaired Stock and Participation Certificates shall

be restored in the reverse of the sequence set forth
in Section 855.1 until each share of Stock and unit of
Participation Certificates has a book value equal to the
par value or face value, respectively.

860

Liquidation

In the event of a voluntary or involuntary liquidation of

the Association, following the payment of all claims in
accordance with the Act and Regulations, the remainder
of the assets of the Association shall be distributed to
the holders of Stock and Participation Certificates. In
the event there are insufficient funds to pay the holders of Stock and Participation Certificates at par value,
then distribution should be made in accordance with
the priorities for impairment set forth in Section 855.1
of these Bylaws. In the event funds are sufficient to pay
all holders of Stock and Participation Certificates at par
value, any excess funds shall be distributed, insofar as
practicable, to the holders of Class B Common Stock, Class
D Common Stock, Class A Participation Certificates and
Class B Participation Certificates in the proportion that
the aggregate interest paid by each holder over the prior
two years bears to the total interest paid by all holders
of stock and participation certificates.

865

870

Lien

Except with respect to Stock or Participation Certificates
held by other System institutions, each of Association,
MidAm, PCA and MidAm, FLCA shall have a first lien on
all Stock and Participation Certificates in the Association
owned by its borrowers as additional collateral for any
indebtedness of such borrower. Upon an Authorization
Event, all Stock and Participation Certificates shall be
pledged to MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA, as the case may
be, as additional collateral for any indebtedness of the
borrower to MidAm, PCA or MidAm, FLCA, respectively.
Stock and Participation Certificates may not be pledged
or hypothecated to third parties.

Paid-In Surplus

The Association is authorized to receive paid-in surplus from the FCB in accordance with the Act and the
Regulations.

875
Secondary Market Loans
875.1 Equity Retirement

On or after 12-01-96 no stock or participation certificate
is required to be purchased as a condition for obtaining
a loan which is designated, at the time the loan is made,
for sale to a secondary market. Designated loans not
sold within the 180 day period shall be subject to the
equity requirement for loans as stated in bylaw 810.4(e)
or 810.6(e).

875.2 Retirement

The Board is authorized to retire stock or participation certificates on those loans sold to a secondary market prior to
12-01-96 and on those loans designated for sale to the
secondary market but not sold within the 180 day time
period, provided however that the Association shall not
retire such stock or participation certificates if the action
would result in the failure of the Association to meet the
minimum permanent capital adequacy standard established in the FCA regulations.
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GETTING INVOLVED

How to Support your Cooperative

As a member-owned cooperative, we rely on the time and talent of
members like you. Becoming involved in Farm Credit keeps agriculture strong in your region, while ensuring the future of farming
for generations to come. Strengthen your skills, build relationships, and expand your personal network by becoming involved
in one of the three Farm Credit leadership groups outlined here.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board of Directors includes 16 member-elected directors, each
on a four-year term. It also includes two directors appointed by the
board. The board is responsible for specific areas of governance,
including an Executive Committee and an Audit Committee.
Candidates are nominated annually for open positions based
on skills, experience, and eligibility, with Farm Credit’s voting
members making the final selection each fall.
The board is entrusted to use sound and ethical business principles
when making decisions and representing member interests. They
are responsible for maintaining financial strength, while ensuring
a structure is in place to provide superior service.
Directors receive a monthly retainer for attending board meetings
and other special events. If you are a Farm Credit member holding
voting stock and reside or farm in our service territory—and you
combine visionary thinking, leadership experience, and strong
communication skills with a passion to serve—you are eligible to
be nominated for this position. Other qualifications and eligibility
requirements apply.

NOMINATING COMMITTEE

Voting Farm Credit members elect five members in each state’s
service territory to serve as the Nominating Committee every
year. This committee meets in June to nominate candidates
for open director and Nominating Committee positions for the
consideration of voting members. Any holder of Farm Credit voting
stock is eligible to be nominated for a position on the Nominating
Committee (other qualifications and eligibility requirements
apply). Members are compensated for their time and travel.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE

The 1,084-person Farm Credit Advisory Committee serves as
grassroots advisors to the Board of Directors. Acting at the local
level, members meet regularly to provide input and make the
concerns of the general membership known to its elected officials.

WANT TO FIND OUT MORE?

Call your local office or our central office in Louisville at
1-800-333-3276, extension 153728. We will be happy to provide
you with more information. We appreciate your interest and look
forward to your involvement!
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Borrower Privacy

Your privacy is important to us. We want you to know that we hold
your financial and other personal information in strict confidence.
Since 1972, Farm Credit Administration regulations have forbidden
the directors and employees of Farm Credit institutions from
disclosing personal borrower information to others without your
consent. We do not sell or trade our members’ personal information
to marketing companies or information brokers.
FCA rules allow us to disclose customer information to others
only in these situations:
 M[cWo]_l[_jjeWdej^[h<Whc9h[Z_j_dij_jkj_edj^WjoekZe
business with.
 M[YWdX[WYh[Z_jh[\[h[dY[\ehoekm_j^ej^[hb[dZ[hiWdZ
provide information to a credit bureau or other consumer
reporting agency.
 M[YWdfhel_Z[_d\ehcWj_ed_dY[hjW_djof[ie\b[]WbehbWm
enforcement proceedings.
 <97WdZXWda[nWc_d[hicWoh[l_[mbeWdÒb[iZkh_d]h[]kbWh
examinations of our association.
 ?\ed[e\ekh[cfbeo[[iWffb_[ijeX[Yec[Wb_Y[di[Zh[Wb[ijWj[
appraiser, we may give copies of real estate appraisal reports to
the State agency that licenses appraisers when required. We will
first remove as much personal information from the appraisal
as possible.
As a member-owner of this institution, your privacy and the
security of your personal information are vital to our continued
ability to serve your ongoing credit needs.

WE TAKE A 360°
VIEW OF RURAL
AMERICA

92

sales offices
in Indiana, Ohio, Kentucky
and Tennessee

$

97,146

$19.7

customers

billion financial
services cooperative

62.6 million

in diversified business
loans in 2012

At Farm Credit Mid-America, we
know our customers are looking
for more than transactional
banking. They want financing
that adapts to their individual
goals and their way of farming.
And that’s what we do. We deal
with the everyday realities our
customers face. We understand
how their operations work

8,998

288.6 million

$

new customers
in 2012

in earnings (a record year)

and the complexities of their
finances. We know what kind
of financing is needed, what it’s
needed for and when it makes
sense to pay it back. That’s why
we tailor our products to rural
needs and provide financial
services that make sense
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OFFICE LOCATIONS

INDIANA

Marion
1-800-327-9887

Celina
1-800-953-8330

Versailles
1-800-206-3001

London
1-800-880-6598

Dresden
1-800-346-2191

Anderson
1-800-878-0195

Martinsville
1-800-372-3276

Circleville
1-888-515-5626

Washington CH
1-800-334-9325

Maysville
1-800-880-5931

Fayetteville
1-855-631-9921

Bluffton
1-800-477-4737

Rensselaer
1-888-290-0936

Coshocton
1-855-861-4412

Wooster
1-800-216-9651

Mt. Sterling
1-800-261-3071

Greeneville
1-800-218-1040

Columbia City
1-888-823-2719

Rochester
1-800-508-9873

Delphos
1-800-522-7728

KENTUCKY

Owensboro
1-800-844-1148

Johnson City
1-800-444-3276

Columbus
1-800-231-2747

Rushville
1-800-797-0002

Eaton
1-800-686-4146

Bardstown
1-800-880-7288

Richmond
1-800-880-2741

Knoxville
1-800-524-0931

Corydon
1-800-835-2501

Scottsburg
1-800-742-9930

Gallipolis
1-855-431-2803

Bowling Green
1-800-264-0310

Russellville
1-855-507-6415

Lawrenceburg
1-800-273-0260

Crawfordsville
1-800-875-5531

South Bend
1-888-208-5603

Lucasville
1-800-325-3086

Campbellsville
1-800-880-2396

Shelbyville
1-800-880-1420

Lebanon
1-800-765-7172

Evansville
1-800-345-2835

Sullivan
1-800-952-6171

Mansfield
1-888-200-1380

Danville
1-800-880-1114

Somerset
1-800-880-4311

McMinnville
1-800-444-3276

Franklin
1-800-327-5099

Valparaiso
1-888-212-5308

Marietta
1-888-713-4293

Dry Ridge
1-800-880-6785

TENNESSEE

Murfreesboro
1-800-444-3276

Greencastle
1-800-446-0306

Washington
1-800-288-9348

Millersburg
1-855-838-9959

Elizabethtown
1-800-880-7288

Athens
1-800-444-3276

Oneida
1-800-226-7017

Greensburg
1-877-850-6488

Williamsport
1-888-898-3276

Mt. Orab
1-800-321-3013

Glasgow
1-800-880-9425

Chattanooga
1-877-633-2399

Ripley
1-800-635-5003

Hagerstown
1-800-647-0299

OHIO

New Philadelphia
1-800-327-2551

Grayson
1-800-880-6453

Columbia
1-800-665-9242

Shelbyville
1-855-631-9922

Huntingburg
1-800-752-7429

Alliance
1-800-327-2551

Oberlin
1-800-454-2072

Hardinsburg
1-877-212-8616

Cookeville
1-800-346-2190

Somerville
1-800-469-2794

Kokomo
1-888-956-5666

Archbold
1-800-232-1660

Orwell
1-800-638-9390

Henderson
1-800-783-9776

Crossville
1-800-444-3276

Springfield
1-800-894-9998

Lafayette
1-888-232-9000

Bellefontaine
1-800-589-6118

Springfield
1-800-633-4135

Hopkinsville
1-800-489-5626

Dandridge
1-800-524-0932

Tazewell
1-866-630-5017

LaGrange
1-888-823-2718

Cambridge
1-888-713-4293

Utica
1-800-937-6050

Lexington
1-800-880-2741

Dickson
1-800-227-7414

Three Way
1-888-855-0631
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